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I. INTRODUCTION  

Defendant Gerald Armstrong ("Armstrong") makes numerous inflammatory arguments 

to avoid demurrer, but beneath the rhetoric, his arguments distill down to two recurring 

claims -- that the Church of Scientology ("the Church") is some "behemoth," quintessential 

bad-guy and that Armstrong should not have taken his attorney's advice and entered into 

a settlement agreement with the Church. When Armstrong's arguments are dissected based 

on the law and the facts, their lack of substance becomes evident. 

His arguments regarding the illegality of the agreement stem from his dissatisfaction 
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with his own attorney, rather than from defects in the agreement itself. In his arguments 

regarding fraud and deceit, Armstrong attempts to convince the court that the settlement 

agreement was void because of fraud in the inception. Although he claims he did not know 

what he was signing, his claim of ignorance stems only from his post partum unhappiness 

with the advice he received from the lawyer he himself retained. Armstrong cites no case 

to support the proposition that a contract becomes void, not because of the fraud of one of 

the parties, but because of taking the advice of one's own attorney. 

Armstrong's defense of mistake is based on the same shaky ground--his complaints 

about the conduct of the lawyer representing him. Although Armstrong attempts to base 

his mistake defense on the claim that "Scientology had compromised" his attorney and that 

his attorney was acting as Scientology's agent, there are no facts pleaded (and none exist) 

which establish that Armstrong's attorney was acting as an agent of the Church. 

Similarly, Armstrong's affirmative defense of undue influence is based on complaints 

about his attorney and other parties who were signatories to the settlement agreement, who 

Armstrong claims pressured him to participate in the settlement agreement. Armstrong also 

attempts to buttress his undue influence defense with allegations of a "fair game policy." 

However, there is no basis for the assertion that the alleged "fair game policy" is present 

Church doctrine, or that it motivated the Church's acts here.' In any case, Armstrong 

complains about undue influence directed at his attorney and other litigants rather than 

against himself. He cites not a single case which stands for the proposition that a party to 

an agreement can assert the defense of undue influence based on the influence supposedly 

wielded over disrelated parties. 

Indeed, "Fair Game" is not part of current Church doctrine, and never did mean what 

Armstrong claims it meant. (See, concurrently filed Reply In Support of Motion to 

Stirke.) More importantly Armstrong's repeated references to "fair game" are irrelevant, 

as the mere existence of a fair game policy cannot form a basis for civil liability. 

Christopherson v. Church of Scientology (1982) 644 P.2d 577-591. Discussion of the 

supposed fair game doctrine in other cases does not establish that this doctrine actually 

existed or has any bearing on this case. Sosinsky v. Grant, (1992) 	Cal.App.4th 	, 8 
Cal.Rptr.2d 552. 
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Armstrong's constitutional defenses are similarly without merit. The law clearly allows 

him to relinquish his constitutional rights for purposes of achieving a settlement agreement. 

Armstrong's also fails to demonstrate any facts showing that he could, under the 

most liberal interpretation, demonstrate such contractual defenses as frustration of purpose, 

lack of mutuality, impossibility of performance, lack of consideration, unconscionability, 

hardship, and unreasonableness. Armstrong's contractual defenses boil down to the same 

rehash of his two basic themes--that Scientology is bad and that he shouldn't have trusted 

his own lawyer. 

II. DISCUSSION 

A. Dismissal Of The Demurrer Is Not Warranted.  

Plaintiff first made its motion to strike in August, 1992, a motion that was 

necessitated by defendant's inclusion of extensive improper and offensive material in the 

answer. Defendant's answer contained so many unnecessary and prejudicial references that 

plaintiff's could not focus on the actual averments in the answer. In such circumstances it 

would have been a useless exercise to bring a demurrer based on defendant's first answer. 

Consequently, there is no reason now to strike plaintiff's demurrer based on the application 

of Local Rule 181. 

B. There Is No Basis For Armstrong's Affirmative Defense Of Illegality.  

Armstrong complains that the settlement agreement he signed with the Church was 

illegal based on his assertions that: (1) he was pressured by his attorney, Michael Flynn, into 

signing agreements with Scientology, (2) the agreement contains a "collusive reversal of 

Judge Breckenridge's decision" and attempts to obtain repossession of the Church's private 

documents, the MCCS tapes, (3) there were secret agreements between Flynn and the 

Church, and (4) Scientology coerced of Flynn into acting as its own agent because of a 

supposed "fair game" policy. None of these protestations state a single fact on which to 

base the defense of illegality of the settlement agreement. 

Armstrong's first claim with regard to the defense of illegality is nothing more than 

a complaint that his own attorney pressured him into signing the settlement agreement with 
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the Church. Notably, he cites not a single case to support the proposition that a contract 

becomes illegal because one of the parties accedes based on the advice of his attorney. 

Armstrong's second claim of illegality, based on a supposed "collusive reversal" of the 

Breckenridge decision, is equally vacuous. Not only was there no actual reversal of the 

Breckenridge opinion by agreement, but if there had been such an agreement for reversal, 

it would have been legal and appropriate. The courts have authority "to reverse (or 

otherwise vacate) a trial court's judgment when the parties stipulate to such action as a 

condition of a proposed settlement pending appeal." Neary v. Regents of the University of 

California, 92 Daily Journal D.A.R. 11277, August 14, 1992. In the Neary case the 

California Supreme Court concluded "that, as a general rule, the parties should be entitled 

to a stipulated reversal to effectuate settlement absent a showing of extraordinary 

circumstances that warrant an exception to this general rule. This presumption in favor of 

a stipulated reversal is sound and salutary for several reasons." Id. The Supreme Court 

acknowledged the efficiency of entering into post-judgment settlements and noted that 

allowing such reversals through settlement agreements promotes fairness and integrity of 

the judicial process. Id. Therefore, even if a reversal of the Breckenridge opinion had been 

obtained by stipulation, such a reversal would have been not only permissible but favored 

under policies promoting settlement agreements. 

Armstrong makes a further somewhat unintelligible claim that the agreement is illegal 

because the Church obtained possession of its private property, the MCCS tapes, which 

Armstrong had previously stolen. Notwithstanding Armstrong's hyperbolic statements about 

the tapes, the United States Supreme Court has definitively ruled that "a person's interest 

in maintaining the privacy of his 'papers and effects' is of sufficient importance to merit 

constitutional protection." Church of Scientology of California v. Zolin, U.S. Supreme Court 

case no. 91-84_, slip op., November 16, 1992. The Zolin case arose after Armstrong had 
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stolen certain tapes which were the private property of the Church.2  

Armstrong's remaining claims regarding illegality of the settlement agreement are 

nothing more than variations on the theme that Scientology pressured Armstrong's attorney, 

Michael Flynn, by using a "fair game" policy and making "secret" agreements. Armstrong 

cites not a single authority to establish that an agreement becomes illegal because the 

attorney handling the agreement participated in alleged unethical conduct. 

Armstrong also discourses disjointedly on the subject of illegal consideration without 

pleading any facts showing the illegality of the consideration here. In this case, Armstrong 

received a very sizable cash settlement in exchange for his promises to refrain from 

specified, agreed-upon conduct. Armstrong does not appear to contend that the cash 

consideration he received was illegal. Instead he merely reiterates his arguments about the 

illegality of the agreement itself.' 

C. 	Armstrong Fails To Show A Defense Of Fraud Or Deceit  

Armstrong attempts to plead the defense of fraud in the inception, but he fails to 

show that he was deceived as to the nature of his acts. The facts Armstrong pleads to 

show fraud n the inception show, if anything, the defense of fraud in the inducement. 

Armstrong complains only about the Church's supposed fraud in representing to him what 

the Church's intentions were with regard to the settlement agreement. He claims the 

Church intended to use the settlement agreement as a tool to implement fair game and to 

"engineer a reversal of Judge Breckenridge's decision in Armstrong I." 	Defendant's 

2  The IRS obtained the tapes through actions contended by the Church to be illegal. 

Although the Supreme Court in Zolin did not express an opinion on the Church's 

argument regarding the government's purloining of the tapes, the Court ruled that the 

Ninth Circuit should not have considered the issue moot and could have ordered the IRS 

to return or destroy copies of the tapes. Id. at p. 7, slip op. 

3  Armstrong apparently claims that the settlement agreement constitutes an agreement 

to suppress evidence. Review of the agreement reveals as a matter of law that the 

settlement contract does not constitute such an agreement. Even if it did contain illegal 

provisions, such provisions are severable. Carter v. Seaboard Finance Co. (1949) 33 

Cal.2d 564, 203 P.2d 758. 
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Opposition to Demurrer to Amended Answer at p. 7. 

The facts pleaded by Armstrong demonstrate unquestionably that he knew what he 

was signing since he complains vociferously about the fact that his attorney gave him the 

incorrect advice that the provisions of the agreement were not enforceable when in fact they 

were enforceable. This makes it patently clear that Armstrong knew exactly what he was 

signing. 

In such situations, a contract is formed, but it is voidable if fraud in the inducement 

can be shown. In order to void the contract, however, "the aggrieved party must rescind 

by prompt notice and offer to restore the consideration received, if any." Witkin 1, Summary  

of California Law, Contracts, § 403, p. 363 (9th ed. 1987), (emphasis added) citing Garcia  

v. California Truck Company (1920) 183 Cal. 767, 192 Pac. 708. 

Since Armstrong has pleaded facts that relate only to a claim of fraud in the 

inducement, his remedy is rescission, but he pleads no fact showing that he gave prompt 

notice or offered to restore the substantial payment which he received as consideration for 

the settlement contract. 

Armstrong has failed to plead the necessary facts showing he is entitled to rescission 

and he has failed to plead any facts showing a defense for fraud in the inception. His entire 

fraud defense should be stricken. 

D. Armstrong's Equitable Defenses Are Invalid  

Armstrong fails to allege facts showing equitable defenses are available. He has not 

specially pleaded the elements of estoppel. (See Judelson v. American Mutal Bearing Co.  

(1948) 89 Cal.App.2d 256, 200 P.2d 836), and legal conclusions regarding estoppel are 

insufficient. Fishbein v. Western Auto Supply Agency (1937) 19 Cal.App.2d 426, 65 P.2d 

928. 

The equitable defense of laches is not available in an action at law. Hopkins v.  

Hopkins (1953) 116 Cal.App. 2d 174, 253 P.2d 723. In addition, Armstrong fails to plead 

facts showing unclean hands with regard to his entry into the settlement agreement. 

E. Armstrong's Mistake Defenses Have No Merit  
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Armstrong asserts a ninth affirmative defense of mistake of law which is based solely 

on the assertion "that Scientology compromised his attorney." Defendants Opposition at p. 

8. Armstrong thus admits that his defense of mistake emanates from his reliance on the 

mistaken advice of his attorney. 

As a matter of law, Armstrong has failed to meet the requirements to establish a 

mistake of law. Relief may be granted for a mistake "not caused by the neglect of a legal 

duty on the part of the person making the mistake." 	Cal. Civ. Code § 1577. 

Misapprehension of the law by one party, "of which the other parties are aware at the time 

of contracting," but which they do not rectify may constitute a mistake of law. Cal. Civ. 

Code § 1578. 

Armstrong attempts to claim a defense of mistake of law on the theory that 

"Scientology was apparently aware that 'a person is entitled to contract away or to waive 

his constitutional rights." Plaintiff's Opposition at p. 9. This statement fails to show that 

Scientology was aware of a mistake of law. To the contrary, Armstrong's own pleading 

shows that the Church believed the provisions of the contract were enforceable and that the 

agreement made with Armstrong was valid. If there was any mistake of law, it was 

occasioned by Armstrong's own attorney, and Armstrong has pleaded no facts showing that 

the Church knew of a mistake of law in the agreement and knowingly took advantage of that 

mistake.4  

F. 	The Defense Of Undue Influence Is Unsupported By Any Facts.  

The basis of the defense of undue influence lies in the existence of a confidential 

relationship whereby one party places its confidence in another. Cal.Civ.Code § 1575. The 

defense of undue influence may also arise when one person takes unfair advantage of 

another's weakness or distress. See Odorivz v. Greenfield Schools Dist. (1966) 246 

Cal.App.2d 123, 54 Cal.Rptr. 533. 

4  Armstrong apparently acknowledges that his mistake of fact defense has no merit 

since he does not bother to argue this defense in his Opposition. 
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There is no allegation that Armstrong placed confidence in the Church or that the 

Church took unfair advantage of his weakness of mind or distress. Armstrong's real 

complaint is that he placed confidence in his attorney, who he believes gave him incorrect 

advice. As a matter of law, the defense of undue influence is not available in such 

circumstances. 

Moreover, the remedy for undue influence is limited to rescission, and, as noted 

earlier, Armstrong has not pleaded one fact showing entitlement to rescission. See 1 Witkin, 

Summary of California Law, Contracts, supra, at § 424. 

G. 	Armstrong's Constitutional Defenses Are Invalid.  

Armstrong argues histrionically that he was deprived of constitutional protections in 

performance of a settlement agreement because litigants in "Scientology-style litigation" 

must "begin against a behemoth on a wildly-tilted playing field." Defendant's Opposition at 

p. 11. He further claims that the settlement agreement deprives him of the right to associate 

with persons in the organization of his choice, which apparently consists of persons 

"dedicated to exposing Scientology." Thus, he argues, his free association, free speech and 

press rights are violated. 

Armstrong cites no authority to support the proposition that the settlement agreement 

deprives litigants who are adverse to Scientology of their due process rights to a fair trial and 

that this in turn violates legal protection. This omission is undoubtedly based on the great 

dearth of cases that support such a proposition. 

With regard to his First Amendment arguments Armstrong overlooks that it is well 

established that individuals may enter into contracts which restrict their First Amendment 

or other constitutional rights. ITT Telecom Products Corp. v. Dooley (1989) 214 Cal.App.3d 

307, 319, 262 Cal.Rptr. 773, 780 (even First Amendment free speech rights may be waived 

by contract); In re Steinberg (1983) 148 Cal.App.3d 14, 20, 195 Cal.Rptr. 613, 617 (a 

moviemaker may contractually limit his First Amendment rights to disseminate his movie). 

Other jurisdictions have also rejected the concept that a person may enter into an 

agreement to give up constitutional rights and later repudiate the agreement by claiming a 
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violation of such rights. See Trump v. Trump (1992) N.Y. 2d attached hereto. In the Trump  

case, the court specifically noted that parties may stipulate away their constitutional rights 

and pointed out that a nondisclosure agreement made for purposes of settling litigation does 

not constitute the "state action" which is a necessary component of an illegal prior 

restraint.5  

H. 	There Is No Merit To Armstrong's Contractual Defenses.  

Armstrong alleges generally that he stated facts sufficient to support the defenses of 

frustration of purpose, lack of mutuality, impossibility of performance, lack of consideration, 

unconscionability, hardship, unreasonableness, and failure of consideration. 

Armstrong's consideration claims are totally dependent on his claim that the 

consideration offered for the agreement was unlawful because the agreement itself was 

illegal. These defenses should be summarily dispatched since the contract itself is not illegal, 

as discussed previously herein. 

With regard to the legal defense of impossibility of performance, such a defense is 

available in circumstances where a party's performance is made impractical "without his 

fault by the occurrence of an event, the nonoccurrence of which was a basic assumption on 

which the contract was made . . ." Restatement (Second) Contracts, § 261. The 

impossibility arises from the nature of things, rather than the inability of the promisor to 

perform the terms of the promise. Witkin, Contracts, supra, § 774, citing cases. 

The defendant here has pleaded no facts showing performance is impossible. There 

are no facts alleged which show either that it is objectively impossible to perform the terms 

of the agreement or that Armstrong has the inability to make such performance. Armstrong 

cites no case law or other authority to support his claim of impossibility of performance. 

The claim of frustration of purpose is equally devoid of merit. The defense of 

5  Armstrong's only response to the rule of law that allows a person to waive or 

relinquish constitutional rights by entering into a specific contract is to argue that "this 

argument should be made to a jury." Opposition at p. 13. Armstrong's statement 

overlooks the fact that his constitutional defenses are deficient as a matter of law and 

that there isno need for a jury determination of such issues. 
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frustration of purpose arises where the basic reason, which was recognized as both parties 

as being a reason for entering into the contract, is destroyed by an unforeseen or 

superseding event. See Dorn v. Goetz (1948) 85 Cal.App.2d 407, 193 P.2d, 121. The 

nonoccurrence of the frustrating event must involve a basic premise on which the contract 

was made. Restatement (Second) of Contracts, § 265. 

In this case, Armstrong has alleged not a single fact showing that the assumptions 

on which the contract were made no longer exist or that any occurrence destroyed the basic 

reason for entering into the contract. 

Armstrong's defenses of lack of mutuality, hardship, and unreasonableness are based 

solely on his claim that the Church influenced Armstrong's counsel. Again, this allegation 

fails to establish any facts that provide a basis for these defenses. 

III. CONCLUSION  

Review of Armstrong's Opposition shows that all of his defenses are based on the 

same weak claim that his attorney was somehow unduly influenced by the Church and, 

therefore, gave Armstrong incorrect legal advice. This is turn boils down to an admission 

by Armstrong that he would not have entered the settlement agreement if he had known 

that it was actualy enforceable because adherence to the terms of the agreement prevents 

him from continuing his campaign to show the world that Scientology is bad. After 

accepting the Church's money in settlement, Armstrong now wishes to repudiate the 

agreement and raises a series of nonmeritorious defenses to allow him to accomplish his 

objective. None of these circumstances form a basis for the defenses which Armstrong 

asserts. Indeed, scrutiny of the bases of these defenses shows their lack of merit as a 

matter of law. 

Dated: November 24, 1992 	Respectfully submitted, 
BOWLES & MOXON 

By: 	uXit 
Karen D. Holly 

Andrew H. Wilson 
WILSON, RYAN & CAMPILONGO 

Attorneys for Petitioner CHURCH OF 
SCIENTOLOGY INTERNATIONAL 
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CHRISTOFFERSON v. CHURCH OF SCID;TOLOGT. ETC. Or. 577 
Cie 	Ordieep.. 644 P 177 

37 Orapp. 203 	 against one of religious org-ani.oitiotu 'would 
Julie CERISTOFFERSON. Respondent. 

CHURCH OF SC=TOLOGT OF PORT-
LAND. an Oregon nonprofit corpora-
tion. Church of Scientolop, Wisaios ef 
Davie. a nonprofit C.allforrtia corpora-
tion doing business In Oregon, Delphian 
Foundation. an  Oregon nonprofit corpo-
ration. and Martin Samuels. Appe?lents. 

No- A1-70.4-05134; CA 15/57.. 

Court of Appeals of Oregon. 

Argued and Submitted Sept. 3, 1951 
Decided May 3, 1932. 

Reconsideration Denied June 10, 1982. 
Plaintiff brought action against reli-

gious corporations and others to recover for 
the tort of outrageous conduct and fraud. 
The Cirrait Court, Multnorna.h County, Rob-
ert P. Jones, J., entered judgment for plain-
tiff, and defendants appealed. The Court 
of Appeals, G7lette, P. J., bek that: (1) 
evidence was insufficient as a matter of law 
to establish the tort of oa=•eceous conduct; 
(2) plaintiff could not recover oil fraud 
claim from religious corporation which did 
not employ individuals who allegedly made 
misrepresentations to plaintiff; (3) plaintiff 
could not recover on (nod claim from non-
profit educational institution on basis of 
misrepresentations sEepsily made by 
agents and employees of religious corpora-
tion; (4) evidence was stiff-16*ot for jury on 
the issue of whether misrepresentations al-
legedly made by agents and employees of 
one of religious =root-stern were made for 
a wholly coartligious purpose so as not to 
come within the role that the troth or falsi-
ty of religiose berets and doctrines may not 
be submitted far determination by jury in 
action for band; and (5) defendant 
giOUS earparetion was entitled to the pro-
tection of the First Amendment for state-
mants regarding its religious beliefs cad 
practices anima it were shown that state-
menu made ware part of as offer of those 
services to the public on a wholly secular 
basis; became trial court erroneously iss-
strut-tall jury in that regard, judgment  

be reversed and cause would be remanded 
for retrial. 

Reversed as to certain defendants; re-
nnet! and remanded for new trial as to 
other defendanta. 

L Damages ow,203(6) 
In outrageous conduct artier., although 

it is ordinarily for trier of fact to determine 
not only historical facts, but also whether 
offensiveness of defendant's conduct ex-
ceeds 

 
any reasonable limit of social tolers-

ton, it is for trial court to determine, in the 
first instance, whether defendant's conduct 
may reasonably be regarded Is too gramme 
and ootrageout as to permit recovery. 

2. Damages sm$0.10 
It is only by proof of conduct that is 

beyond the limits of social toleration that 
plaintiff may recover in an action fa: GOUT.-
geous conduct, no matter what defendant 
may have intended and no matter what the 
effect on plaintiff may have been. 

3. Damages ovP50.10 
In action brought against religious or-

ganisation and others by former member of 
the organization, evidence was insufficient, 
as a matter of law, to establish the tort of 
outrageous conduct during time that plain-
tiff was auocated with defendants, sisal 
plaintiff joined the religions organization 
voluntarily, there was no evidence that 
plaintiff wu threatened or forced to re-
main involved in the religious organization, 
and no evidence that during her association 
with the organisation, plaintiff was afraid 
to terminate her involvement or feared de. 
fendanu in any way. 

4. Damages ow  50.10 
In action brought against religious or. 

pnizetion and others by former member of 
the organization, evidence was insufficient 
to establish tort of outrageous conduct oc-
curring subsequent to plaintiffs depro-
grunt:sing, since fact that libel action had 
been glad by certain of defendants against 
plaintiff did not establish outrageous con-
duct, there was no evidence that defendants 

to 
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informed plaintiff that she had been de-
clared a -suppreuive person" subject to or-
ganization's alleged policy of retribution, 
and defendants' issuance of document for-
bidding persons associated with defendants 
from communicating with plaintiff was is-
sued after plaintiffs attorney had dernend-
ed that defendants not contact plaintiff. 

S. Fraud 0,30 
Plaintiff could not recover on her cause 

of action for fraud against religious corpo-
retion, ;ince none of individuals who al-
legedly made misrepresentations to plain-
tiff was claimed to have bees an agent or 
employee of he religious corporation, and 
fact that the religious corporation and an-
other religious corporation which employed 
individuals who allegedly made the misrep-
resentations were organizations of the same 
religious movement did not by itself provide 
a sufficient link to bold defendant religious 
corporation liable for what may have been 
done by the other religious corporition- 

L Corporations so 1.6(13) 
Plaintiff could not recover on her fraud 

claim from nonprofit educational institution 
on the basis of alleged misrepresentations 
made by agents and employees of religious 
corporation. since evidence that the two en-
tities shared a corporate officer and shared 
fivalites-  did not support 'piercing the cor-
porate veli" so as to permit treating the 
educational institution and the religions 
norporation as one, and titre was a: rri-
&nee that educational institution had may 
right to control the actions of the religious 
corporation or had any actual control over 
those actions. 

7. Fraud cwa64(3) 
In fraud action brought against reli-

gious corporation, its president, and others. 
evidence on issue of whether religious cor-
poration's president had knowledge of mis-
representations allegedly made by religious 
corporation's employees and agents was 
sufficient for j1:7. 

L Fraud cm  60, 14(1) 
To establish fraud, plaintiff must ordi-

narily prove that representations made 
were false, but when religious beliefs and  

dectrdies are involved, the truth or falsity 
of religious beliefs or deo:rine% may not be 
submitted for determination by jury. 

I. Fraud ewa64(1) 
In action for fraud brought against re-

ligious corporation and others, trial court 
was required to determine the religious 
character of alleged misrepresentations 
only if it could do so as a matter of law, 
that is. if there were only one conclusion to 
be drawn from the evidence. US.C.A. 
Const-Ame ltd. 1. 

10. Crrirrielortal 	OM. 84 

For purposes of rule providing that the 
truth or falsity of religions beliefs or doc-
trines may not be it,ihrnitted for determine-
Lion by jury in action for fraud; while 
beliefs relating to the existence of, and 
man's relationship to, a God are religions, • 
belief in a traditional, or any, "gar fie not a 
prerequisite to a finding that a belief is 
religious. U.S.C.A.Corist.Amend. 

11. Constitutional Law emu 
Fact that religion is of relatively recent 

origin does not mean that it is not entitled 
to the protection of the First Amendment 
tIS.C.A.CorurtAnsend. 

1.2. Constitutional Las. mese 
Orgenizatica which was incorporated 

as a tax-exempt religious organization. 
which had ordained ministers and charac-
terised itself as a ohurch, and which had a 
system of beliefs, or creed, which IMOD rDa• 

passel beliefs that were religious in charac-
ter was a religion, organization entitled to 
invoice the protection of the free exercise 
clause. U.S.C.A.Const-Amend. 

13. Fraud 6E,36 
A religious orgenisetion. merely be-

cause it is such. is not shielded by the First 
Amendment from all liability for fraud: if 
statements by agents of religious orgenina-
tion do not concern the religious beliefs and 
practices of the organization, the free vt-
ercsc clause provides no defense to action 
for fraud. U.S.C..k.Const-Americi. 
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14. Constitutional L 	40,54 
In the contest of the establishment 

clause, the eharsct&ristion of religious or-
ganization's activity as nonreligious is not a 
determinative factor, but the characteriza-
tion of beliefs as religious by ooe seeicing 
the protection of the free exercise clause is 
not determinative either. US.C-A.Const 
Amend. L 

1S. Fraud ea.64(1) 
In action for fraud brought against re-

ligious corporation, evidence was suffiMent 
for t.try on the issue of whether misrepre-
serir—Uoris allegedly made by religious cor-
poration's agents and employees were made 
for a wholly nonreligious pg./rpm* so as not 
to come within the rule that the truth or 
falsity of religious beliefs and doctrines 
may not be submitted for determination by 
jury in action for fraud. 

_lg. Appeal and Error sew1177(5) 
• Constitutional Lew 4E44 

In fraud action brought against reli-
gious corporation and others, in which evi-
dence established that defendant was a reli-
gious organization and that courses which 
plaintiff was induced to participate in were 
par. of religious 	and practices of the 
religion. religious corporation was entitled 
to First Amendment protection for futo-
n:Meta regarding its religious beliefs and 
practices unless it were sisown that state-
ments made were part of an offer of thou 
services on a wholly secular basis; became 
trial court erroneously instructed that a de-
termination should be made for each of 
alleged misrepresentations as to whether it 
was religious was not accurate, judgment 
against religious organization would be re-
versed and cause remanded for retrial. 

17. Freed seg13(2) 
State of mind of one accused of making 

fraudulent representations is at isms wises 
one of the elements to be shown is speaker's 
knowledge of the falsity of the representa-
tion being made. 

U. Fraud ew,k  
In action f w fraud brought against re- 

ligious corporation and others, trial court 

erred in excluding three exhibits offered to 
show the good faith of one of the individu-
als who made an alleged misrepresentation 
to plaintiff. since the exhibits were relevant 
to the issue of the state of mind of the one 
accused of making fraudulent represente-
tiocs. 

12. Fraud 01,6E(4) 
In action for fraud brought against re-

ligious corporations and others, trial court's 
instruction that, in order to find for plain-
tiff, jury was required to find that plaintiff. 
having a right to do so, reasonaisly relied 
upon representation and did not know it 
was false, adequately and accurately stated 
applicabie law, and therefore, trial court did 
not err is denying defendant's requested 
instruction defining "justifiable reliance." 

X. Fraud eta 65(1) 
In action for fraud brought against re- 

ligious - corporatioo and others, 	cart 
erred in refusing to submit defendant's re-
quested instruction defining 'material 
feet," since that tor oonstituted an ele-
ment of the action. 

IL Trial eis250(1) 
In action for fraud brought against re-

ligious corporation and others, trial court 
did oat err in failing to instruct jury that 
'fraud is never presumed," since, within 
context of the instructions as a erisoks, jzry 
was adequately instructed in that regard. 

27. Fraud 110,43(1) 
In action for fraud Drought against re-

ligious corporation and others, trial court 
did oat err in failing to give oeienciants' 
requested instructions containing the spe-
cific !enrage of the federal and state con-
stitutional provisions establishing religious 
freedom. ILS.CA.Corort.Amenda 1, 14; 
C4ast.Arr. 1. ff 2. 3. 

23. Fraud sw,45(1) 
In action for fraud brought against re-

ligious corporation &nd others, record estab-
lished.. as a muter of law, that the beliefs 
practiced by defendants constituted a refl. 
eon, and defendants were entitled to jury 
instruction to that effect. 
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24. Fraud evv61 
Punitive damages are not unavailable 

for fraud merely because the fraudulent 
representations are "speeen." 	U.S. C.A. 
ConstAmend. 1. 

22. Fraud 0,61 
In action for fraud brought against re-

ligious corporations and others, plaintiff 
was not precluded from recovering punitive 
damages, since there is no constitutional 
requirement that religious organizations 
should not be made liable for punitive dam-
arm because they are religious organiza-
tions, even if the content of the statement 
which they are alleged to have made is not 
religious. 1.3.S.C.A.CoristAmend. L 

Charles J. Mentz, Portland, and Emily 
M. BMA, New York City, argued the carat 
for appellant: On the briefs was Charles 
J. Mertes, Portland. 

Garry P. McMurry. Portland. argued the 
cause for respondent With him on the 
brie! were Patric J. Doherty, Ronald L 
Wade, Rankin, McMu.rry, VavRosky I Do-
herty, Waliarn T. Powers and Powers 4it 
Powers, Portland. 

Elden M. Rosenthal and Leslie M. Rob-
erts, Portland, fDed a brief Latina curiae 
for Cooperating C.4t11:13111 for the American 

Laloerties Union of Oregon. 

James L Hoppa, Portland, Let Boothby, 
and Robert W. Nixon, Washington. D. 
Med a brief &micas curiae for Americans 
United for Separution cf Mirth and State. 

Before GILLETTE. P. J.. YOUNG, J., 
sad ROBERTS, J. Pro Tens. 

GILLETTE, Presiding Judge. 

Defendants appeal from the judgment 
entered on a jury vertfect in favor of plain-
tiff in her ac•-ion for fraud and intentional 
infliction of emotional distress ("outrageous 
conduet").1  Plaintiff's fraud cause of ac-
tion alleged 14 misrepresentations which in- 

t. Piainutrs complaint &la) contained a emu et 
scum for Unlawful Trade Frac-met agate* all 
defendants. The jury found that the action 
was barred by the Astute of litTlitiVORII IS to 

duced her to pay some $1000 to defendants. 
Her Wale of action for ou•--ugeous conduit 
alleged in two counts a scheme to gain 
control of her mind and to force her into a 
life of se.—rice to defendants and a COW,* of 
retaliatory conduct after plaintiff disassoci-
ated herself from defendants. Defendants 
interposed various defenses, including a de-
fense based upon the Fret Exercise Clause 
of the First Amendment The jury award-
ed compensatory and punitive damages. 
We reverse and remand. 

THE PARTIES AND THE FACTUAL 
BACK GROUND 

Plaintiff is a young woman who moved to 
Portland from Eureka, Montana. in July, 
1975, shortly after she graduated from high 
school, intending to obtain some work expe-
rience before going to college in the fall to 
study civil engineering. When she first ar-
rived, she stayed for a few days with a 
friend from Montana, Pat Ogler, and then 
moved into an apartment with a young 
women she met through Ogler. She soon 
found a job with an engineering firm and 
work there Pall-time 

Defendants are the Church of SCentology 
of Portland (COSOP), a religious corpora-
tion; the Church of Scientology, Mission of 
Davis (the Mission), also a religious corpora-
tion; the Delphian Foundation (Delphian), 
a non-profit educational institntion not ex-
pressly organized as a elsureh-related 
school; sad Martin Samuels, an ordained 
minister of the Church of Scientology and 
the president of the Mission and L}elphian. 

The beliefs of Scientology were commis. 
rimed in Founding Church of Scientology v. 
United States, 409 Fid 1146, 115142, (D.C. 
C.1r.1969), in a manner which appears to be 
somrsto according to the record before us 
in this use: 

'The movement apparently rests aJ-
moot entirely upon the writings of one 
man, L Ron Hubbard. an American who 
maintained the headquarters of the 

AC defendants r.neept the Ceurth of Scow:Lo-
a of PorUand. As to the Clurr.h. a awarded 
se damages act that clean. and we are not 
askad to ravine that verdict 
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movement in England at the time this 
	

to bodily health are promised as well. 

	

action was brought. In the eariy 1950's, 	Hubbard has asserted that sr-h.-ins. der- 

	

Hubbard wrote tracts eluciciatng what 	matitis, Lethal& some coronary diffical- 

	

be called 'Dianeticts' Dianetcs is a thec- 	tes, eye =able bursitis. aloe, and sinu- 

	

ry of the mind which sets out many of 
	

sitis are paye6coornatie and can be =red. 

	

the therapeutic techniques now used by 	and further that tuberculosis is `perpetu- 

• "The basic theory of Dianitics is that 

Scientologists, ' • s. 	 ated by engrains.' 
• • • • 

	

man possesses both a reactive mind and 
	

'Tbe Hubbard Eactrorneter, or E-co•- 

	

an analytic mind. The analytic mind is a 	ter, plays as essential, or at least impor- 

	

superior computer, incapable of error, to 	tant, part in the process of auditing. The 

	

which ran be attributed none of the hu- 	E-meter is a skin galvanometer, sirmar 

	

man misjudgments which create social 	to those ;mod in giving lie detector tarts. 

	

problems and mach individual suffering. 	The subject or 'preclear' bolds in his 

	

These are traceable rather to the reactive 	hands two tin soap cans, which are linked 

	

mind, which is made up of 'el:grams; or 	to the electrical apperatus. A needle on 

	

pa;terroi imprinted on the nervous system 	the apparatus registers changes in the 

	

in moments of pain, stss  or unconscious- 	
elect-ical resistance of the subject's skin. 

	

ness. These imprinted patterns may be 	
The auditor asks questions of the subject, 

	

triggered by stimuli associated with the 	
and the movement of the needle is apple?- original imprinting. and may then pro- 

 ' ently used as a cheek of the emotional 

	

duce unconscious or conditioned behavior 	
reaction to the questions. According to .which is harmful or irrational 	
complex rules and procedures set oat in 

	

'Dial:eta is not presented as a simple 	
Scientology publications, the auditor can 

	

description of the mind, but as a practical 	
interpret the movements of the needle 

	

science which can cure many of the tills of 	
after certain prescribed qnfactions are 

	

man. It terms the ordinary person. en- 	
asked, and use them in diagnosing the 

	

rocibersd by the 'engracts' of his reactive 	
mental and spirituel condition of the sub- 

	

mind, as a `preclear,' by analogy to a 	
ject" (Fcomotes omitted). 

	

computer from which previously pro- 	
From Dienetim developed Scientology. grammed instructions have not been 

which incorporates Mariana, but includes erased. The goal of IXassetica I to make 
broader concepts. As characterised in 'persons 'clear,' thus freeing the rational 
Founding Chorea, sup= and infzflible analytical mind The bens- 

	

fIta this will bring are set oat in consider- 
	°With Scientology =me much of the 

	

able and alluring detail AZ mental dis- 	overlay which lends color to the charm,- 
orders are said to be caused by 'engrains.' 

	
terisation of the movement as a religious 

so are all psychosomatic &reorders, and 
	

one. Hubbard has claimed kinship be- 
that concept is broadly defined. 	 tween his theories and those espoused by 

Eastern religions. especially Hinduism: "A proms of working toward 'clear' is 
and Buddhism. He argues that =II is clesc-ibed as 'auditing.' This process was 
asseatially a free and immortal spirit (a e.splicitly characterized as 'therapy' in 

Huisbarra bast-selling book DIANET- 	Ilietan' in Scientological terminology) 

	

ICS: THE MODERN SCIENCE OF 
	

which merely inhabits the 'mast heady' 
MENTAL HEALTH (1950). The process 

	
('meat' is an acronym of the words mat- 

involves conversation with an 'auditor' 
	

ter, energy, space, time). Man is said to 
who would lead the subject or `priciest' 

	
be characterized by the qualities of 'be- 

along his `time track; discovering and 
	

'havingness,' and Idoingness.' 
exposing 'engrarris' along the way. 	The philosophical theory was developed 
Though auditing is represented primarily 

	
that the world is constructed on the rela- 

as a method of improving the spiritual 
	

tionships of 'Affinity.' Reality' and 'Com- 
condition of man, rather explicit benefits 	munication.' which taken together are de- 
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• • • 

norrursted 'the ARC Triangis.'" 409 
7.24 at 1:52. (Footnotes omitted). 

The the:an is said by Hubbard to be 
immortal; it is the spirit controlling the 
body, 'trough the mind. After the death of 
the body, the thetan -exterior..zer and re-
turns in another body. The the= does not 
care to remember the life just lived when 
separated from the body and mind, but 
because each individual comes hack, he is 
responsible for what goes on today because 
he will experience it tomorrow. 

Plaintiff became involved with Scientolo-
rf r  almost immediately upon arriving in 
Portland. Her friend Osler was taidng 
courses from the ]fission and, on his advice, 
she enrolled in a communications course 
offered by the Mission. As part of the 
enrollment prim, she also applied for 
membership in the Church of Scientology. 
Eat= US! she was not yet 	years oici, she 
was told that she must obtain her mother's 
consent to receive the services offered by 
the Mission. Sbe telephoned her mother 
and dictated a consent form which her 
mother typed, signed and returned. 

Plaintiff paid $50 for the communications 
course and begin attending classes at the 
Mission every evening after work and at 
least one day on the weekends. Before 
completing the communications course, she 
signed up for another course and continued 
to participate in cocu-ses and services of-
fered at the Missioa until the beginning of 
October, 1975. 

In early September, plaintiff applied to 
become a provisional staff member at Delp-
hian, located at Sheridan, Oregon. She in-
formed her parents that she had decided 
not to attend college that fall. Moving to 
Delphian in early October, she worked as a 
provisional staff member until the begin-
ning of December. At that time. she was 
asked to leave Delphian until she could con-
vince her soother to stop opposing her in-
voivernent in Scientology. Plaintiff moved 
from Sheridan bad( to Portland and worked 
as a waitress. While there, she worked 

2. References to -Scientoiogy" refer to plain-
mvo4vement vette the movement to mar 

with a staff member of the Mission, az. 
tempung to convince her went' not to 
interfere with Scientology. 

Plaintiff went home for Christrras and 
then returned to Portland in the esrly part 
of January, 1916. Sbe lived with several 
people, mainly Scientologists, and continued 
to work as a weitresa She did not partici-
pate in courses or programs at the Mission, 
but continued to work. on 'headline her 
parents. In April, 1916, plaint!: went to 
her parents' home in Montana to "handle" 
them, that is, to =vines them to accept 
her involvement in Scientology, or else to 
"disconnect" from them. When she 
reached home, she was locked in the house 
and "deprogrammed." She did not return 
to her involvement with Scientology and, in 
fact, became active in anti Scientology se-
tivities and participated in "deprogram-
ming" others. Sbe filed this action in 1977. 

Defendants nisi; 52 assignments of error, 
covering nearly every. phase of the proceed-
ings from pretrial to post-verdict. .Orgeni-
nation of the issues is somewhat complicat-
ed by the various causes of act ioa and the 
various defendants. Several assignments 
involve the Arr. Amendment defense 
raised by defendants. However, before 
reaching the constitutional issues which 
most be decided in this cue, we first con-
sider non-constitztional challenges to the 
outrageous conduct aux of actioa 

OUTRAGEOUS CONDUCT 
Plaintiff alleged two counts of outra-

geous conduct. The first alleged a scheme 
to gain control of her mind and to force her 
into a life of service to defendants. The 
allegations in this count involve actions 
committed by defendants during the time 
that plaintiff wan involved with Saentolo. 
gy. At the close of the case, defendants 
moved for directed verdicts on this cause of 
action, arguing that, as a matter of law, 
plaintiff had not proved acts that exceeded 
the limits of social toleration.3  

al and do not refer to nieustifrs reisnonshqs 
vnth any perucuier defendant. 

2. The moccm WMw wan dimmed to both 
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The tort of intentional infliction of emo-
tional distress, or outrageous conduct is 
rrull in the process of developing in this 
state. For example, there remain some 
questions as to what state of mind is re-
quired in particular situations to subject a 
defendant to liability. See Brewer v. Er-
win, 217 Or. 435, 454-58, WO P.2d 398 
(1979); compare Airman r. Centre/ Baling 
Bureau, ra Or. 443, 568 P.24 1382 (1917), 
with Rockial r. Pollard, 259 Or. 54, 485 
P.24 23 (1971). 

A wsperit.: relationship" between the par-
ties has played a role in every cue in this 
state involving this tort.' The tort via 
characte--ized is &3aa y. Central BiZing 
BLitalti, supra as n° " • an abuse by the 
error of a positic or a relation with tie 
other, which gives him actual or apparent 
authority over the other, or power to affect, 

_ his interests. • • •.'" 7.79 Or. at 446, .5.SE 
P.2.41 1382. Sae also Brewer v. Erwin, supra 
(̀landlord md_tchs•nt);_Rocklu71 r. Pollard, 
septa (doctor- 	as patient); Ffbcoatrick r. 
Robbins, 51 OrApp. 597, 828 P.2d 910, rev. 
den. 231 Or. 151 (1981) (landlord and ten-
mitt): Bcde wig v. 1C-Martt, 54 OrApp. 40, 
63.5 P.24 657 (1981), rev. den. 32 Or. 450 
(1982) (employer-employe).' The role of 
that relit onship has recently been explored 
in Hall v. May Department Stars Co.., 31 
Or. 131, Eirl 2.241 125 (1981), a ease involv-
ing an employer-employe relationship, in 
which the ioars stated: 	• 

counts of the outrageous conduct stains Os 
appeal, Safendants arras that there was so 
outrageous conduct as a osetter of law ea to 
Count a As to Count In dalsodsau do not 
nuke that precise arrument. but make -several 
0X1112' afrureertilk. eschiding the arr.:mein that 
the actions an proses ad by the Pint Arnerisi-
merit We decide the issue as to both comma 
on the tees-caecarutional basis rather than 
reach the corteuturuonal issue as to Cann L 

4. Stews' specifically did oat decide whether 
there could be recovery is a situauce to WWI 
there was no special relationship and where 
only recitieuriess was sibrws. Clew of defend-
ants' assigrunerru of error concerns an instruc-
tion erguels informed the Jury that pUuntaff 
could recover tf deiendanu acted recklesary. 
Plaintiff bad previously withdraws portions of 

"The chancier of the re ntionship 
bears on the mental element required to 
impose liability, compare Rockhal with 
Turman and Brewer, and also on the next 
issue, the offensiveness of condom that 
crosses the threshold of potential tuthaity, 
see Pak*, v. Cark, [253 Or. 113, 453 P24 
882 (1969)1" 32 Or. at 13'7, 637 P.24 
125. 

A plaintiffs particular staceptibaity to 
distress has also played a part in certain of 
the cues. See Rbekhal v. Pollard, supra 
(plaintiff already distraught blame of 
automobile accident and injury to child); 
Truman v. Centre/ 3171ing Bursa, supra 
(plaintiff blind and suffering from glauco-
ma. requiring treatment by clinic for which 
Dll wan toeing collected); Putpatrick r. 
Robbins, supra (plaintiffs aged and visually 
disabled). 

Part of the uniqueness of this cue lies in 
the Lbeenee of both of the considerations 
just discussed At the close of the evidence, 
plaimtiff withdrew the portion of bet cam-
plaimt which alleged a special relationship 
between her and defendants.. Neither does 
she argue on appeal that she was in any 
way particularly susceptible to the infliction 
of emotional distress 

The type of conduct fa- whids fiabtlity 
may be imposed for infliction of emotional 
cristrens, absent physical injury, is not well 
defined. Rockhal v. Pollard, supra, rejected 

her camptaist which alleged a special reiallogs- 
betwrie he and dieenclants. We do am 

reach the issue of the instruction because we 
dispose of the outrageous mock= Ca= on 
other ground& 

itadriong involved we party defendant Wu, 
had no :penal relationship to the plaintiff. 
However, even in that case, some of the ace 
necessary to establish the tort were cocrentsett 
*Kay by the employer•deferidant. arbert with the 
other party defendant's erscouragerriost. 

L Plaintiff was 1, years o/d when she first en-
rolled in the carrvriuruostions course but turned 
11I soon after. She does not =term that her 
age or the !set that she was lb %og on hay atm 
for the first time grade !ter ;amnia/iffy suscep-
Me to the infliction of ensouroal Wows. 
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the descnption in Restatement (Second) of 
Torts f 46 (1965)' and decided: 

"We need a empler test and think it 
beat for this case to merely hold that the 
conduct must be outrageous in the ex-
treme. It is our impression that the test 
for liability in these cases can only be 
worked out on a case by case basis. Hers 
we must determine whether defendant's 
conduct was so extreme as to warrant the 
imposition of liability for any severe emo-
tional distress caused thereby." 259 Or. 
at 59-6C, 48.5 P.241 28. 

In later rice, the type of conduct which 
would subject a defendant to liability has 
Seen cha.racterseci as "beyond the limits of 
social toleration." Brewer v. Erwin. supra, 
as7 

 
Or. at 4.58, 600 12.24 398; see Aim, Hall 

v. May Department Stores Co., supra, 232 
Or. at 137, 637 Pid 126. 

[I] Ai:hough it is ordinerLy for the trier 
of fact to determine not only the historical 
facts, but also 'whether the offensiveness 
of the defendant's conduct exceeds any rea-
sonable limit of social toleration." Han v. 
May Department Stores Co., supra 292 Or. 
at 127, 537 P.2d 126, 

nt (is] for the trial court to deter-
mine, in the first instance, whether the 
defendants' conduct may reasonably be 
regarded as so extreme and outrageous as 
to permit recovery. If the minds of rea-
sonable men would not differ on the sub-
ject the court [ts] obliged to grant an 
order of involuntary nonsuit • • •.• ?a-
kar v. CIark, supra, 253 Or. at 132, 4.53 
P.2d SC. 

Ilse trial court here erred in denying 
defendants' motions for a directed verdict 
as to count I of the outrageous conduct 
cause of action. We find no condom both 

7. The Iteraternern describes the combat which 
grres hat to liability u follererc 

• • • • it has not been inousts that the 
defendant has acted with an intent which is 
tomato or even cruriSrual. or that he has is. 
trhited to inflict emotional disuses. or eves 
that his conduct has been characterized by 
'trance.' or a degree of aceravaUon which 
would en the the plaintiff to punitive dem-
ases for another tort Liability has been 
found testy where the conduct hes been so 
oin.-ageous in character. and so extreme in 

alleged and proved under that count that 
could subject defendants to liability for the 
tort P!zintiffs ant count acrid: 

"Thu the above misrepresentations 
and other unlawful practices were part of 
a scheme to gain control of Plaint:ifs 
mind and force her into a life of service 
to the Defendants. Sbe wan intentionally 
alienated from her family and friends. 

. Plaintiffs ability to direct her life and 
form reasonable judgments was inten-
tionally impaired by Defendants through 
the use of a crude polygraph, intense peer 
pressure and other covert meal= She 
was coerced into performing labor for 
which she was not paid. She was held up 
to ridicule, humiliated, and forced ender 
threat of retribution and physical harm to 
follow the dictates of the Defendants, 
and caused to give Defendanta ail the 
monies she had or couid beg ar oorrow 
from others. 

"As part of the above scheme, Defend.. 
ants caused Plaintiff to believe and fear 
that she would be subject to severs pan--
ishment should she ever bring suit 
against De.fene-antS. -F0:;:a 	tri...vrtr-rai 
of Defendants' practices, testify against 
Defendants, demand a return of money 
from Defendants or commit any other act 
Defendants determined to be against 
their interests." 	• 

(12) In this pleading, defendants' intent, 
their conduct and the effect on plaintiff are 
interwoven. However, this interweaving 
should not be permitted to obscure the fact 
that each of the three elernents--intent, 
conduct which is outrageous or beyond the 
limits of social toleration. and resultant se-
vere emotional distress—must be proved. 
In the present case, defendants made no 

deices. as to go beyoed as possible bounds 
of decency, and to be retarded as Lova/ova. 
and =testy intolerable in a =vetted contenu-
nary. Generally, the case is one in which the 
recitation of the facts to an average number 
of the convniattry wouid arouse has resent-
=tent against the actor. and Wed biz to es. 
claim. 'Outrageous!' - Itanaurmera (Seem d) 
of Tons. I et commas 4 (1W51. Mat ird 
PerfrJuD r. toward sugra. 2.15 Or. at 51-40. 
413 P.24 26. 
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arruaent mnceraing intent, but they main-
tain that there is not suffeent evidence of 
either of the last two elements—the outra-
geous conduct and the resulta.n; distress--
to permit the cue to go to a jury. We 
agree that there is no suffident evidence of 
the resultant severe emotional distress 
However, that specific basis for taking the 
case from the jury was not argued to the 
trial court and we therefore decline to re-
verse the court on that basis. This brings 
us to a consideration of the evidence con-
cerning iefendants' conduct It is only by 
proof of conduct that is 'beyond the limits 
of soeal toleration" that plaintiff may re-
cover in an action for outrageous conduct, 
ao matter what defendants may hare in-
tended and no mattes what the effect on 
plaintiff may have been.' 

With respect to the well-pleaded aflegs- 
_tions, the evidence, viewed ba the light mart 
favorable to plaintiff, is as follows. Plain./ 

_tiff _enrolled in _ the 	 o ma course 
on the advice of her friend Pat Oiler. She 

_paid $50 and began the course almost imme-
diately. In signing up for the course, plain-
tiff filled out forms which stated that she 
was applying for membership in the Chug 
of Scientology and which explained that 
Scientology was a religion. Because she 
was 17 years old at the time, she was re-
quire...! to get permission from her mother to 
take the course and did an. Plaintiff did 
not pay any attention to the explanatons of 
the religious notary of the courses because 
she was told that she bad to fill out the 
forms in order to be allowed to take the 
communications course, and that was all she 
was interested in. 

Plaintiff found a job working full-time in 
an engineering office in Portland and win 
Crying with a non-Scientologist roommate. 
She tattled that she would CO to work 
until 5 p. ca. or 6 p. as. and then attend class 
every evening from about 	p. nt. until 
between 10 p. rri. and midnight She also 
attended class at least owl full day, and 

L It tray will be that anuch of the effrra ea 
piamuff that Ls acted is SCR taa-boreal &s-
tress" Ether, but we need not =swear Wye 
whether recovery for such effects tray be had 
In an action for outrageous conduct. We note 

often both days. on weekends. This ached-
ale continued from July 13. when she began 
the communications course, Intl the begin-
ning of October, when she moved to Delphi-
an. At the same time, plaintiff maintained 
contact with family member, and friends in 
the Portland area visiting them a number 
of times and corresponding regularly with 
bet mother. 

The communications course in which 
plaintiff first enrolled consisted of a set of 
"drals" which were practiced on an 

basis with a supervisor. As part of each 
drill plaintiff would read bulletins which 
dead-bed the theory of the particular drill 
to be undertaken. She was then "checked 
out" on that information to be certain that 
she understood what she had read. Then 
she would practice the drill "to a win," that 
is„ _until :she could complete the drill as 

_proscribed. After completing ear of right 
drills, plaintiff repeated each on a more 
difficult level until a final pus was 
arldeverl. 

The drills were described by plaintiff at 
trial. The first drill involved reading a 
buIletin ant:led "Hoer to Study" and being 
checked out on it.. The second drill involved 
reading the presmibed bulletin and then 
sitting across from another parson with 
ryes closed and attempting to ear bee 
mind of all thoughts and to eliminate all 

I 	 • 

outside influences or distractions. She tes-
tified that she practiced this drill for "a 
couple of hours" before bar supervisor indi-
cated that she had completed it to a win. 
The third drill involved the same procedure, 
except that she sat across from her supervi-
sor with her eyes open. 

The fourth drill is called "buIlbaiting." 
Plaintiff described it as follow= 

" • • • You're sitting with your ryes 
open faring another person. The other 
pc-son, while you're sitting there staring 
at them, tries to distract you by Wag 
you jokes, making fun of you, pointing at 

that the isSisrepresirttatniets which are !wai-
terd are the same thisreoreSent1OCIOS which 
forrn the bass for the fraud *cum These 
represenutuons are net separately suflacessa to 
be actsorable as otarageotas ceedisc. 



you, touching you, making faces at you, 
tryng anything that they can to _talcs 
you laugh or twitch or c-y or frown—
:make any sort of acitnowiedgernent that 
you heard what he said or saw what he 
did. 

"A.nd the objective is to he able to tit 
there while that person says anything to 
you and does anything around you with-
out thinking about what they're doing, 
and without getting red—mating any 
get ters. 

"IQ: How was it practiced on you? 
"A: Well, first of all they started by 

just telling me jokes and I like a good 
joke and I would laugh. And they would 
say: Flunk, you laughed. And they 
would start you all over again on the 
same drill and they would tell the same 
jokes until they reached a point that you 
no longer laughed at it 

"They would make fun of me. " • 
Well, they teased me about my religion; 
they teased roe alaout sez they teased 
me about my looks. Some of_them made 
gest.res toward me like corning up clue 
to me as if they were going to kiss me or 
touch me. " As soon as they found 
an area that caused me to laugh more or 
to frown or to cry, they would go into 
that area in depth and 	• try and get 
me embarrassed or to cry or make some 
sort of .neaction. 

1"Q: Did they use *became words or 
any foul language? 

"ik Yu, they did. I was embarrassed 
by obscene words and they used obscene 
words a lot. Every obscene word that I 
ever heard was used. 

"Q: Were you reduced to tears? 
"A: Yes, I was, at times. 
"Q: How long did the bullbaiting 

thing go on? 
"A.: I was bullbaited several different 

times during the communications course, 
through three weeks." 

After plaintiff was able to complete the 
builbaiting drill. she participated in teach-
ing it to other people.' 

There was other testimony regarding the s-
parseness of others In Oulibatung on other =e-
scorts vets plaints!! was not present_ Mow. 

The nest dr-21 required that plaintiff maxi 
sentences :rem Lewis Carroll's Alice in 
Wonderland and Through the Looking 
Glass unc,1 she was able to read without any 
infection. After that chill plaints.' partci-
patad in a drill  which was descrled as 
"learning to acknowledge someone." 

"And in that drill the person that's 
acting as coach would " • ask you a 
question and all you were rupposed to do 
is acknowledge them by saying 'Good,' 
or 'Yea' And you weren't supposed to 
pot again any inflection in your voice. 
You were supposed to just say it. • • • 
There was no specific  messing to it or 
anything, jtost to get the person to know 
that you heard what they =id. 

"Q: What type of questions were 
asked? 

"A: There were two questions; one 
was • • • I don't think they were all 
questiona I think the person just read 
phrases out of the books 'Through the 
Looking Glass' and 'Alice in Wonder- 

The nest drCl was learning how to re-
ceive as acknowledgment from a person. 

"And what that was there were two 
questions. The first one was 'do fah 
swim' and the second one was 'do birds 
fly.' • • • Moo sat aortas from the 
coach and you say to him: Do fah swim. 
And the coach ties to ignore yoo and you 
try to say it in as much of a fceeeful 
manner that you get an acknowledge-
ment from him And he will sit there 
and laugh at what you're doing, or totally 
ignore you. And you're supposed to just 
sit there and stare right at him and clear 
your head of all thoughts and ask him 
this question with such force that be feels 
he has to answer you. 

"And then, as another step up from 
that same drill, the coach. instead of just 
ignoring you or laughing, .call begin to 
make remarks just like in the builbaiting 
drill. You will sar Do birds fly. He 

ewer. to eonsisiertng defendants' conduct uti-
ward LASS ptaInttIT. we consider as reirearst only 
what otalnuff tetpanenced. 
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well says I don't Imo., what do you 
think. And then you're supposed to just 
repeat the question 'Do birds fly' until 
you get him to answer. And he sral—
so me v:m es the person will say that they 
have a headache or that they want a 
drink of water and you're supposed to 
my—you're supposed to get them to for- 
get that they have a headache or that 
they need something and to answer your 
question for you." 
Plaintiff's memory was not clear on four 

further dells, aped -upper indoen-.nation" 
drills. One involved reading a bulletin enti-
tled "Whets Control," which plaintiff re-
membered as "tailing you bow to 4xintrol 
people and how to achieve the response and 
the actions that you want to achieve from 
the other person." Another involved learn-
log commands, such as "Look at the wail, 

_walk over to that wall, touch that wall, turn 
around." In another drill, 

' • • you give a command to tan] 
ashtray as you bold it in front of you. I 

.n't remember what the commands 
were, but they were something lace • • • 
'Rise op,' or something. And you raise 
the ashtray up and you do this drill over 
and over until you are convinced that you 
have told the ashtray to move and it has 
moved." l• 

Plaintiff completed the communications 
course in about one month. However, on 
July 25, 1911, less than two weeks after the 
started that course, the signed up for an-
other, knows as the Student HAT worse, 
for which she paid $250 to the Mission. 
While she was taking the communications 
course she was also approached by the ICS.. 
son staff about receiving "auditing," for 
which certain claims were made that are 
included among the misrepresentation; al-
leged in the fraud action. When she was 
approached about "auditing" by a staff 
member, he told her everyone has "tang- 

le. "There was some mbar cossuiscery concreting 
the type of aburtties invoived in the 'upper 
incloarsrsauon" drills. Although soenewhat 
more detailed it is substantially the sane as 
plc me% descrspuons, 

ups" that inhibit communicaton and asked 
IS she would like to get rid of all of her 
hangups and improve herself. Plaintiff 
signed ap for auditing because the staff 
member told her it was the best thing the 
could do for herself, she was convinced that 
it was, and she wanted to develop herself to 
her fullest potentiaL On July 26, plaintiff 
paid MO and on July 31, the paid an addi-
tional $1100 for a number of hours of audit-
ing. 

Bemuse she did not have the molary to 
pay for the hours of auditing she was told 
she would need, plaintiff was coached by 
Mission staff members to borrow money 
from friends and family. The staff mem-
bers helped her to call people and ask to 
borrow money. A staff member would tall 
her the type of conversation to use and sit 
there while she called, giving  her ideas and 
suggestions. In the evenings when she 
went to the Mission she would take wanes 
for a while and then be asked to come to a 
staff -member's office to make phone calls. 
She borrowed roo—soo from friends and 
family end another $500 from Freedom 
Federal Credit Union, which is operated by 
Scientologists. 

Plaintiff began the Student HAT coarse 
and the auditing right after completing the 
communications course, approximately in 
mid-August. She tank the course on wok-
ends and participated in auditing in the 
evenings during the week. As explained 
above, the purpose of auditing is claimed to 
be to relieve the negative effects of past 
experiences. This is accomplished by the 
use of an "E-meter," which is a wucle gal-
vanometer. The individual receiving the 
auditing holds what are described as two 
tin cans, one in each hand. The cans are 
connected to a device which has a needle 
which reacts in some =saner to the re-
sponses made-u 

1. The E-eneter was described in United Sams 
v. Arucio or Cariteo. rm. 333 F.Supla 337 =A 

"The town.' is essenuaLty a site is galva-
nometer user= two tan cans as eke:roles. It 
is crude. battery-powered and designed to 
measure dectrical stun resistance. it is corn- 
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Plaintiff testified that the auditor would 

auk a question, suc:9 as "Do you have any 

problems with you.? parents?" She would 

describe a particular argument, and he 

would ask if there were earlier. similar 

times she had had arguments with her par-

ents. She testified that he would take her 

bark esziier and eariier until he decided she 

had related the earliest incident and her 

"needle was floating." The auditor would 

then go on to another question. 

The time spent on auditing varied_ 

P'sintiff testified: 

spent at least two hours, and often 

as many as five or six hours in auditing. 

If a point was reached, after a couple of 

hours, where I was pretty happy, then 

the auditor would end the session But it 

curing the course of the qu•estiona he 

asked me, I became very upset and =led 

or wouldn't answer his questions., he 

would keep asking me question; over and 

over again until I reached a point where 

be felt it was safe to end the session. 

"There was a rule that in audit:ire that 

the auditor could never let the person 
leave when they were upset And so I 
remember a number of times that I be-

came real upset and just wanted to leave 

and go home and get out of the place, but 

be said: No, just sit down. The way out 

is the way through, was the phrase he 

u.sed. What upsets you the most by talk-

ing about it more with me will help you 

overcome it.' 

The Student RAT course involved listen-

ing to tapes of lectures by L Ron Bubbard, 

the founder of Scientology, and reading 

various bulketina, after which plaintiff 

would be examined to determine whether 

she knew the material contained in each 
one. These materials convened proper 

study habits and methods and the values of 
auditing. 

pletety tummies: and ineffective in iineiL A 
person using t.M meter (or treatment holds 
the tut cans Let has Rands during an interview 
with the operator who is known u an audi-
tor and who purports to mod indictors from 
the g.n.lvanorneter !WOWS LS a ESOCES mamma 
to questions. • • • - 

In conjunction with the Student HAT 

course, plaintiff attended Friday evening 

"mutters.' which all students in the com-

munication course and the Student RAT 

course were required to attend. According 

to plaintiff, the purpose of these meetings 

was "to discuss our progress on the course 

and reinforce one another, tailing each oth-

er how many points we had nude." n She 

descmhed the musters as follows: 

*114.11, I would go into the gm:bastion 

room and be seated and then someone 

would come in that was officiating that 

night- Acid it varied. late the person 

would come in and usually do something 

• 

 

to vet everytoly to relax. One of the 

most common things they did was ,to Ley: 

I want everybody in here to introduce 

therrafif to two people in the room that 

they have never met before. And then 

the people would do that and they would 

be relaxed and then be would start talk-

ing about Scientology and Diinetics and 

communications course and all of these 

things and bow we were all going to 

become part of clearing the planet or 

making sure that everyone on the planet 
got Dianetie auditing. 

'Sometimes they did little drills Mee: 

Once a person asked us to locate a space 

around us that we would call ours and 
then everyone would sit there and do 

that. And he would say: Now increase 

that space—increase that space to include 

you and two people beside you, and you 

do that. And then be would say. In-

crease the space to include this room, and 

ws did that. 

'Re would say: Inc easethe space to 

include the whole worid, and you just 

bodily increased it to that spot. Aad be 

said: See what it is going to be Wu. We 

are going to inc-ease ourselves until we 

get everyone on this planet clear." 

i2. The students received pouts for what they 
learned in the courses. and a charting system 
was rruintsined in which each student's peons 
were recorded to show his or her prowess us 
SesersoLogy. 
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me ir-Louaun of the course would stand 
ap arid tell the group what they had gained 

from the course. They would 

" 	• say how it had changed their 
lives and how they ware—they had final-
ly found meaning and futally found a 

way to improve themseives end rid them-
selves of their harmful past, emotions and 

attitude." 

Around the end of August or the begin-
ning of September, staff members at the 
Mission began to talk to plaintiff about 

becorn:fle a staff member. They told her 
how rewarding it was, and they began to 

talk about Delphian. Certain of the claims 

made for Delphian are included as misrep-
resentations alleged in the fraud count. 

Aecording to plaintiff's testimony, she was 
told that she could take courses at Delphian 
which could be applied toward a college 
degree, that site would Itart about arthitek--
ture and engineering "from the ground trp" 

and that Delphian was partially funded by 
-governmer,t grants for doing research in 
icier and wind energy and recycling. 
Plaintiff decided that going to Delphian 
would be the best way to combine her inter-

ests in architecture and engineering with 
her interest in Scientology and Dianetica 
S. informed her parents that she would 
sot be going to college that fall as she had 
planned; instead, the applied to Delphian 

as a,provisional staff member. After vi ate 
ing her parents' home in Montana in Sep-
tember, she moved to Delphian at the be-
ginning of October. 

Plaintiff was assigned to live IL a MGM 

with two other women and two children. 
De had a small space for her belongings. 
She worked harvesting crops for a couple of 

weeks after she arrived and then helped to 

move an old garbage dump oa the property. 
In the evenings, sIst worked indoors clean-
ing floors, washing dishes and other such 
tasks.. Her work day extended from 8:30 a. 
na to II p. rn. or later. After three or four 
weeks, she was assigned to care for small 
children of other staff members. She was 
given instructions on using Scientology 
methods in caring for the children. She 
worked as a "nanny" until she left Delphi- 
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an. She received wages of a few dollars a 

week. 

Visitors were not encouraged at Delphi-

an, and plaintiff was inst.-Jr-4d that tin
weeks notice was necessary if YiSit.011 were 

corning. She desc-ibed one incident that 

occurred around Halloween when she was 

reprimanded because her mother and one of 

her friends from Montana came to visit 

unannounced. Plaintiff's mail wu some- 

times opened before she received it at Delp- 

hian. 

Beginning in October and continuing into 

November, plaintiff reported to Delphiea 

staff member: that her :clothe-- was vary 

concerned about her involvement with 
Scientology She bed been told that she 

must report that kind of activity, because if 
it was upser.ing to her it would inhibit her 

-progress in Scientology. Plaintiff eveatuat-
ly became aware that her mother had hired 
a lawyer to find a way to get her away 

from Delphi= She informed the staff of 
this action and that her mother had also 
gone to the media. 

Plaintiff was told that this kind of &cirri-
ty was bad for Scientology and that it 

would give Delphian and Scientology a bed 
reputation. She was told that she would 
have to leave Delphian until she maid "han-

dle" her panne, which mount that she 

must convince them to sign a statement 

that they would not sue, attack or embar-
rass Scientology or Delphian. 

Plaintiff left Delphian in late November 
or early De=rshar and re:tin:xi tr‘ Port-

land. Site began working as a writ Nss in 

an hotel and lived in a house with several 

other people, including her friend Oiler, 
who had also been at Delphian during the 
time plaintiff was there and had left when 

she did. Plaintiff went to the Mission and 

saw staff member Jim Brooks. who WOO to 
help her handle her parents. She was told 
that the could not take any lasses or audit-

ing until she could handle them. She was 
informed that in order to continue in Scien-
tology she had to handle her parte-1 ur 

"disconnect," Ls. cut off all relations with 

therm 
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Brooks coached her on what to say in 
letters to her parents to convince them to 
allow her to continue in Scientology with-
out interference. Plaintiff obtained per-
mission from Brooks to go home for Christ-
mas to attempt to handle her parents. She 
rode home with her brother, who lived near 
Portland. Her parents would not agree to 
plaintiff's requests, and plaintiff returned 
to Portland with Osier. 

Under the direction of Brooks, plaintft 
wrote her parents a letter on January 5, 
1.916, informing them that she was no long-
er involved with Scientology. Although 
that was riot true, Brooks told her it would 
help her family "destimulate." She contin-
ued to report her parents' activities to 
Brooks, including an -unsuccessful attempt 
to hold plaintiff is an 'outel fur "deprogram-
using." Brooks coached plaintiff in writing 
letters to her parents, either asking that 
they not interfere with bee involvement in 
Scientology or "good road. fair weather* 
letter: avoiding the sobject of Scientology. 

Plaintiff also met with Lay Mason from 
COSOP, who told her that if she wanted to 
continue in Scientology she would have to 
disconnect from her parents. Regarding 
that conversation. plaintiff testified: 

"We were dismissing my mother and I 
told lay Wilson that my mother had 
hired an attorney and that she had told 
me all theft things about Scientology I 
had never heard about. My mother men-
tioned something about a Fair Game Law 
and I said that to Lay Wilson. And she 
said: Oh, that policy letter has been can-
celled. However, the treatment of sup-
pressive persons is still the same." 

A 'suppressive parson" is one who at. 
tempts to damage or interfere with Scien-
tology. The Fair Game policy war pro-
claimed by L Ron Hubbard in a policy 
latter at October 11, 1967. It stated that 
suppressive persons Im}ay be deprived of 
property or injured by any means by any 
Scientologist without any discipline of the 
Scientoloest May be tricked. sued. Bed to 

M. Defendants mai:nal:1 that this policy had 
been =mailed. There was conflicting evidence 
as to the status of the policy and its meshing. 

or destroyed." ° Plaintiff testified that she 
had been shown several policy letters re-
garding treatment of "suppressive persons." 
naiad!! had been told that her mother was 
suppressive. 

Plaintiff did not want to disconnect from 
her parents, but she did want too:itwit in 
Scientology. She asked for permission 
from Brooks to go beak to Montana to 
persuade her parents to agree riot to sue. 
attack or embarrass Scientology and not to 
interfere with her involvement in it She 
made the trip in April 1976. When she 
arrived at her parents' borne, she was 
locked in the house and "deprograminseci." 
As a result, plaintiff de6ded that she did 
not want to return to her involvement in 
Scientology, and she did 5GL 

[3] Whether viewed u individual acts or 
taken together as a "scheme,' we find noth-
ing in this record which constitutes conduct 
which is "beyond the limits of social tolera-
tion." There is no evidence that plaintiff 
was threatened or forced to remain in-
volved in Scientology. To the coats.-7, abo 
maintained many contacts with non-klitn-
tologista. She had a full-time job both be- 
fore and after her stay at Delphian. The 
Mani slows that abe visited with relatives 
Ewing-  in the Portland area periodically 
while she was there. She maintained corn-
'pow:knot with her parents and went back 
to Montana twice before bar visit in April 
when abet was "deprogrammed." Her par-
ents or her mother visited her several twee 
in Portland or at Delphian. Plaintiff be-
came involved and maintained her involve-
ment because she desired to do so. If mis-
representations were made regarding the 
benefits or the nature of Scientology which 
gave rise to that desire, her remedy would 
be for fraud, not outrageous condom. 

Plaintiff was recruited and indoctrinated 
into the Church of Scientology. That re- 
craitmeat and indoctrination, u far u this 
record disclose'. were not so very different 
than might be used by any number of or-
guinatioaa. She joined the group e011115- 

We awed act resolve Osage conflicts because 
the mere es:menet at the pulley  does not con-
stitute outrageous conchs= as to this plaintiff. 
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tartly, albeit. a she claims, on the basis of 
misrepresentations made to her. However, 
she continued to partipate and maintained 
her invoivernent for whatever reason with-
out actionable threats or coercion by de-
fendants. 

The drills plaintiff vu subjected to as 
part of the communications course she ini-
tially signed up for were not in themselves 
outrtgeoui. Plaintiff studied the theory 
behind etch drill before participating in it. 
She returned day after day to par.lMpate in 
the course, elthough she had daily contact 
with ison-Scienthiogins in her job and at 
her apartment with her non-Scientoiogist 
roommate. The most that can be said is 
that plaintiff was convinced by defendants 
to accept what they were turning-, :inlets 
the mesas involved more than persuasion, 

that is noroutragenus. Whether or not we 
find any merit to defendants' teschings, 
plaintiff apparently did find merit in them 
during the time Abe _was _ associated with 
Scientology. The. tact that she was later 
convinced of their invalidity does not make 
defendants' conduct outrageous post bog 

The only evidence which supports the al- 
legation that plaint:: was caused 	be- 
lieve and fear that she would be subject to 
severe punishment should she ever bring 
snit against Defendant', voice her disap-
proval of Defendants' practices, testify 
against Defendants, demand a return of 
money from Defendants or commit any oth-
er act Defendants determined to be ageimt 
their interests" is the testimony regarding 
the Pair Game policy. Plaintiff testified 
that after she was "41:programmed" she 
was fearful of retaliation by defendants. 
There is no evidence that during her usoci-
'Ciao with Scientology plaintiff was afraid 
to terminate her involvement or feared de-
fondest' in any way. The fact that she 
was informed of a policy known as Fair 
Game is not outrageous conduct. 

We Isoki that the evidence presented un-
der Count I of the outrageous conduct cause 

14. 7 cis count was withdrawn as to defends= 
• Delo.uan at the close of Use condones. COSOP 

and defendant Sarmons contend that no en-
vadvemeast by them was shown. Because a( 

of noon don not, as a matter of Lew, 
atablish conduct that is outrageous in the 
extreme or beyond the limits of scc:al toler-
"don. 

(4] Count 7 of the outrageous conduct 
action " alleges that 

'Subsequent to Plaintiffs deprogram-
ming, Defendants have pursued a course 
of conduct against Plaintiff that is de- 
signed to threaten, humiliate, and intimi- 
date Plaintiff and cause her fear, anguish 
and mental distresa Defendants on June 
7, 1977, filed suit against Plaintff with-
out cause and for the purpose of intimi-
dating Plaintiff; Defendants have, in 
June of 1975 and April of 1Sf77, declared 
Plaintiff to be a suppressive person sub-
ject to Defendants continuing 'fair game' 
policy of retribution which directs De-
fentiante—nrganizations and other Scien-
tology organizations and their members ' 
to trick, lie to or desi:roy Plaintiff. De-
/tridents have, beginning in June 'of 1976 
and continuing to the present, forbid, 
through threats of mental and physical 
harm any friends of Plaintiff connected 
with Defendants from commgeicating 
with Plaintiff; Defendants have caused 
and continue to cause the mailing of ma-
terials to Plaintiff and Plaintiffs family 
subsequent to Plaintiffs request that 
such mailings emu." 

Defendants moved for a directed verdict on 
this count as well, on the basis that the 
conduct proved was not such that it could 
subject them to liability. 

The evidence established, first, that a li-
bel action was filed by certain of the de-
fendants against plaintiff after a press con-
ference in which plaintiff participated. 
That matter rvas still pending at the time of 
the trial of this action. We said in friend-
son v. Pullers. 45 Or.App. 467, 472, 606 P2d 
1159 (1980): 

'Without necessarily suggesting that it 
could never be so, we note that it would 
be a rare case in which the bringing of a 

our disco:loon of this count on mho' erounds. 
we need not reach that issue. We use the tees 
"defendants" Isere unthout delinesung whose 

devolves:nem was shown. 
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lawsuit would flt the definition of outra-
geous conduct. This tort has been re-
served :or `intentional acts of a fiegrant 
clamour =de: most unusual facts and 
6revristences 	• ' Nee ton v. Sid= 
282 Or. 731, 736, 580 P.2d 1019 (19771).* 

Here the record reveals nothing about the 
other case except that it was an action for 
libel. We do not know, nor can we infer 
from this record. that it was without foun-
dation Such proof would not even support 
an action for abuse of process without evi-
dence that plaintiff had preveLed. Erlend-
son v. Pullen, supra. Filing each a suit is 
not outrageous conduct. 

There is evidenoe that plaintiff was de-
tiered a suppressive person by certain indi-
viduals connected with the Mission. Plain-
tiff testified at trial that abe knew she had 
been declared suppressive because that is 
whet is done. _At.her_deposition, the testis 
fled thatsomeonehed tolcl_herthat she had 
been declared suppreuive. _However, there 
is no evidence that defendants informed 
plaintiff that she was declared suppressive 
and subject to the Fair Game policy, or 
knew or intended that the be so intormedu 

The only evidence that defendants for-
bade, 'through threats of mental and physi-
cal harm, any friends of Plaintiff connected 
with Defendants from communicating with 
Plaintifr is a document issued June 7, 
1976: 	• . 

"All staff are hereby notified not to 
attempt to contact or interfere with JUL-
II CHRISTOFFERSON or PATRICE 
OSLe= in any manner. Thee two per-
sons have attacked the Church of Scien-
tology so I repeat, they are not to bit 
communicated to for any reason. 

"If either of thee two contact any one 
in the Church, or if any associate of 
theirs try to contact any one of the 
nurtt. report this action • • • immesh-
ataiy." 

This directive followed a letter sent on June 
6, 1976, by as attorney on behalf of plain-
tiff and Osier. That let es said: 
13. At her deposition. piarnuff urstifles1 that she 

did not know whether she had been declared 
rt+pprrsave. Liter. however. the said she had been :old by someone that stye had twee dr 

offloe represents Julie Christof-
ferson and Patrick Osier, forme-iy mem-
bers of your group. Enclosed are photo-
copies of affidavits to the effect that they 
have both been deprogrunmed, and that 
they request legal assistance should you 
make any effort to induce them back into 
the cult Naturally, a large civil action 
would be as expected element ad any 
such legal assistance. Therefore you are 
hereby on notice that say amempt td 
contact them, or to interfere with them in 
any manner, val result in most grave 
consequenoes to you." 

In addition, a former ruff member of the 
Mission testified that they were told at e 
ruff meeting not to communicate or associ-
ate with plaintiff or Osier under any condi-
tions, or if they did so, to write it up 
immediately. 

Following, u the directive had, the letter 
from plaintiffs attorney -  • -riding  that 

_defendants not contact plaintiff in any way, 
the orders that plaintiff's demand be met 
can in no way be considered outrageous 
conduct There is no evidence that any 
threats of mental or physical harm were 
made to enforce the prohibition on contact 
with plaintiff. 

The mailings of which plaintiff complains 
were, with one exception, from the Ameri-
can Saint H21 Foundation (Icnown as 
ASPIC)) in California, a Siientologg origami-
ration. Several personal letters to plaintiff, 
signed by individuals she did not know, 
asked about her progress in Sciettalogy. 
Some of those letters contained brochures 
on Scientology. In addition, two editions of 
a newsletter entitled Cause also published 
by ASHO, were received by plaintiff. 

plaintiff received one form letter 
with brochure from COSOP. Plaintiff 
does not sent to contend that the contents 
of the letters were offensive, but she Lift-
flan that she was made fearful by the fact 
that she received mail from Szientology or- 

dered somporresnme. She staged that she could 
nom mmmembor who had LOW her. but thought M 
was some who let Soeitekoce after arse 
did 
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ganizatioes at aiL Ce.-iii of the mailings 

were addressed to piaiztiffi last Portland 

address and were forwarded to her in Mon-

tana. Others were addrmsed to the post 

office box which was her Eureka, Montana, 

address. 

Mailing letters, brochures on Scientology 

and a newsletter which were in themselves 

innocuous ,=.nnot constitute outrageous con-

duct There was nothing sinister in any of 

the mete :el 	received. Neither 

was there anything mysterious about the 

fact that plaint.r3 forwarding address was 

obtained, for it is clear that certain of the 

items were forwarded by the post office 

and that the envelooes contained an '11d-

dress correction requmted" imprint 

In addition to what was alleged in her 

- complaint., plaintiff also presented evideace 

at trial, without an objection that it was 

outside the scope of the pleadings, of three 

incidents which made her fearfuL Once, a 

couple of months after she left Scientology, 

she was iz Portland and was walking down 

the street with Osier near the house in 

which she was staying. They noticed a car 

parked about a. block from the house, and 

Cale: recognized the person in the car as a 

ScientologSt. They walked up to the car 

and asked the person what he was doing. 

Be did not answer but started the ear and 

drove away. Later that afternoon plaintiff 

noticed a yea parked about a block from the 

house and, as they approached the van, it 

drove away. Oiler reeogaized the person 

driving as a Scientologist 

Finally, in June, 1976, plaintiff and Osier 

were out welkin and noticed two Scientol-

ogists behind thern. They walked into the 

library and were followed into one of the 

library morns. There the two Scientologists 

sat down at a table and stared at them 

while they looked at books. When they 

started to leave, the Scientologists got up, 

but plaintiff and Osier left quickly and cfid 
not see them after that. Them three inci-

dents, either singiy or taken as a group, 

cannot concsivabiy be called outr weals 
coeduct 

We have reviewed the record as it relates 

to the conduct which plaintiff claims to be 

out-woos. We recognize that plaintiff 

does not ciaim that any parbcular action. by 

itself, would constitute out' genus conduct, 

but rather contends that the =toms togeth-

er rise to the level of actionable conduct 

We fInd as a mett.c. of :aw that the conduct 

shown is not actionable as outrageous con-

duct whether viewed as individual acts or 

as a course of conduct Defendants' mo-

t ors for directed verdicts on the mum of 

action for outrageous conduct should have 

been granted. 

FRAUD 

We tore to pleintfrs cause of actin for 

fraud. Plaintiff's complaint contained the 

following eilegatons: 

'Between July. 1975 and April 1976, in 
Defend!...ete numb of Scientolo-

y, Mission of Davis, Church of Scientolo-

gy, Portland, and the Delphian Founds-

tog made the following misrepresenta-

tions regarding the standard, qttarity, 

grade, sponsorship, statoa, characteristics, 

ingredients, uses, benefits, character or 

qualities of the courses or goods offered 

by Defendants when they km*w or should 

have known that such representations 

were false: 

"STI;DN'T PLAT AND COM2dUNICA- 
TIONS COURSE 

"(1) • • • the Church of Scientology 

Communication Course would provide 

sort 'x-scwledge of the mind than is pas-

ses:sed by any psychologist or psychiatrist 

"(2) • • • the communication course 

was completed and endorsed by Father 

Pat Flan/gam of Boys' Town, Omaha Ne-

braska. • • • 

"(3) ' ' • the communicatioo course 

would help the Plaintiff in =Dere work 

and that the course was offered on a 

money back guaranteed basis. • • • 

"(4) • • • [the] student HAT course 

enabled a student to understand any sub-

ject better and more accuratety. • " 

the Student RAT Course was offered on 

a money hack guaranteed basis. 
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"PLALN71IF WAS FURTH= :N-
OV= TO aNGAGE IN A PROGRAM 
I.NOWN AS AUDITI'..;G BY Thu. FOL-
LOWT".. ‘.TG REP YS TATIONS: 

"TS) " • auditing relieves the effects 
of past experiences. • • • through au-
diting she would have more iciowledge of 
the mind than Lay psychiatrist or psy-
chologist and more knowledge of the hod-
Cy poetesses than any doctor. 

Y • • • 

"(a) Auditing develops creatiritr, 
"(b) Auditing inn-eases LQ. scores: 
"(c) Auditing cures neurcees, 

insanity, psyehneornatic 21s, bon:once- 
nality and drug dependence: 

"(d) Auditing slows one to control his 
own emotions and the physical uni•c-se; 
and 

"(e) Auditing was offered on a money 
back guaranteed basis. 

II • • • 

'PLAINTIFF WAS ENDUCED TO 
'ENGAGE - al THE STUDY OF 'DIAN-
=ICS' BY THE FOLLOWING REPRE-
SENTATIONS: 

"(3) • • • Diameters is scientifically 
provable and that it ants asthma erthri 
tis, rheumatism, ulcers, toothaches, pneu-
monia, colds. and color blindness. • • • 

"( ) • • • L Ron Hubbard, the creator 
of auditing, is an engineer and nuclear 
physicist and has a degree from Princeton 
University and as honorary degree from 
Sequoia University and is a graduate of 
George Washington University who re-
vealed Dianetics to mankind as a *erring 
to husenity, with rc intent to ;font 
therefrom • • • 

"(10) " • L Ron Hubbard had a ciril 
engineering degree; a '23.S.' degree and 
wu a nuclear physicist. a graduate of 
George Washington University; and had 
received an honorary degree from Sequ-
oia University and Princeton University; 

"DEFENDANTS FURTHER IN-
DUCED PLALNTIFF TO QUIT FIER 
JOB AND Lra A..'47) WORK AT THE 

1$. DeftEldialtil de sot WV* shat cites* illeird 
StAtimeriti may not to fraudulent. at Iran un- 

DE.2E. k_N FOUNDATION BT MAX-
G THE FOLI.0 WING REP R.W MN-

TA:IONS: 
"(1l) ' • • Delphian Foundation wu 

funded by government grants for devel- 
oping education and alterative energy 
sources: further that ?Ilia tiff noald take 
COWICS at the Delphi= Foundation that 
could be applied by an accredited college 
thward a college degree. 

•(12) • • • L Ron Hubbard was a 
graduate of George Washington Univer-
sity, was an engineer and nuclear physi-
cist and had an honorary degree from 
Sequoia University and that the Delphian 
Foundation wu nearing accreditation 
and had almost been sec-edited in Sep-
tember of 1.975; further that in the 
Spring of 19'76 Plaintiff =old take 
courses at the Delphian Foundation that 
could be applied by ar herredited *allege 
koirari s celltge der.= 

"(13) ' 	• [Plaintiff) maid attend 
smock at the Delphian Foundation and!  
after such study, be able to obtain college 
crecEt hours in architecture or engineer-
ing at any coilege in the ctxustry merely 
by taking e test, 

"(14) • 	[Pla.intiff, would obtain at 
the Delphian Foundation an education su-
perior to any University in t1 worici- 

. • • •.-11 

[5] We first consider the motions far 
&rented verdict made by each of the parties 
on other than conrtitiotionel grounds. CO-
SOP moved for a directed verdict on the 
mumd that plaintiff had not mbown that 
any of its agent or employes had rands any 
of the misrepresentations alleged. COSOP 
argues on appeal that that motion should 
have been granted. 

Plaintiffs complaint alleged that the mis-
representations were made by specific indi-
viduals who were agents or employes of the 
krasios or Delphian. None of the individu-
als named is claimed to have been an agent 
or employe of COSOP. The complaint did 

tirr some arcurrurtartais. 
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allege that the misrepresentations were re-

pelted by various employes of defendant= 

said that they were contained in literature 

provided to plaintiff by COSOP. Hoceever, 

at 	plaintiff did not introduce any evi- 

dence that the 3 tate:nen ts were mule by 

employes of COSOP or that she was provid-

ed with any literature by COSOP. 

There is evidence that plaintiff paid $75 

to COSOP for a "Lifetime RAS?" on July 

30, 1975. F.ASI is in acronym for Hubbard 

A.ssocutior. of Scientology Interr.ational. 

HAS: mein:be-ship entitles one to a 10 per-

cent Escount on purchases from all Sden-

toiocv organas.tior.s. Plaintiff contends 

that COSOP may be held liable for the 

atisreprenentatdons made by employes of 

the }fission, because it received money from 

plaintiff while knovring about the fraudu-

lent practices employed by the Mission. 

Sloe do not contend that act al knowledge 

was 31 h0 vrti, but only that MSOP had non-

structive knowledge of the marketing prac-

tices of the Mission and of the claims that 

were made for the riotiMel offered. 

assuming without deciding that COW? 

could be held liable on such a basis, we find 

no evidence, nor has plaintiff pointed to 

any, to indicate that COSOP was aware on 

July 30, 1911, when plaintiff paid $75 for 

the HAM membership, that plaintiff had 

had any contact with the }fission at all. 

The only evidence regarding the $15 pay-

ment to COSOP is a receipt Plaintiff did 

not testify to the circumstances surround-

ing that payment and, in fact, testified 

mistakenly that she had not paid any mon-

ey to COSOP. The fact that 'both COSOP 

and the Mission are Scientology organiza-

tions doge not by itself provide a sufficient 

link to hold COSOP rabic for what may 

have been done by the Mission. Neither 

does the fact that policy letters and bulle-

tins written by L Ron Hubbard art os-

pouseci by both COSOP and the Mission 

make COSOP liable to this plaintiff. 

Plaintiff has not shown that the Mission 

acted as an agent for =SOP, nor does she 

e'sim that each a relationship existed. She 

has shown no basis upon which COSOP may 

be held vicariously liable for the actions of  

the }fission. We conclude that the notion 

of =SOP for a directed vardict on plain-

t:Ifs action for fraud should have been 

graitad. 

C6] Delphian's motion for directed ver-

dict was on the ground that none of the 

statements alleged by plaintiff were made 

by any of its agents or employes and that 

plaintiff had already paid the 13,000 she 

claims was procured by fraud long before 

she went to Delphian. Although the com-

plaint alleges that certain of the misrepre-

sentations were made or repeated by em-

ployes of Delphian, plaintiff appears to eon-

eerie in her brief that there is no evidence to 

support that allegation. Plaintiff argues, 

however, 	Delphian should be held lie- 

hie because 1) the relationship between the 

Mission and Delphian was such that Delphi-

an should be held liable.; 2) Delphian ono-

firmed certain of the misrepresentations re- 

ardia4 its funding, ra-unen.re and courses 

in a data sheet given to plaintiff to read to 

acquaint her with Delphian when she ar-

rival; and 3) Delphian did receive some 

money from plaintiff, apparently for books, 

and also received free labor from plaintiff 

while she was there. • 

Plaintiff does not rata the theory behind 

her contention that the relationship be-

tween Delphian and the Mission such that 

Delphian should be held liable for misrepre-

sentations made by the W.ission. The evi-

dence she points to in support of her con-

tention is as follows: 

" • • • Mission of Davis has a branch 

at Sheridan on the Foundation premises 

' •, the management of lassiao of Da-

vis is centered at Sheridan • • *, and 

that Mission of Davis, Delphian Founda-

tion and the Sheridan Mission all cc—exist 

on the same property to such an inter-

twined extent that a memorandum was 

necessary to prevent confusion in writing 

out purchase receipts • • •. The two 

organizations have a common president. 

Martin Samuels • • *, who fives at Sheri- 
dan  • • •• 

"Additionally, [the 	sion's) represen- 

tations were not made coincidentally, but 

as part of a policy calculated to induce 

- - 
- 	_ 	- 	 - - 	-••••- 

- 	- 	
•••• - 

- 	- - 	- 
- "' 	

- 
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• 

mr*rd'ors who ha.d spent an their availa-
ble funds for courses in auditing at the 
Msion, to work at the Delphian Founda-
tion in return for further courses and 
auditing ' 	.." 
It .3 not clear whether plaintiff 	sug- 

gesting that the Mission acted as the agent 
for Delphian in making the representations 
or that the two corporations are in reality 
one entity, ie.. an alter ego theory.IT The 
evidence adduced at t.-isl does not. support 
"piercing the corporate veil" so as to permit 
treating the two corporations as one or as 
the alter ego of defendant Samuels The 
memorandum to which plaintiff refers 
shown only that the affairs of the corpora-
tions were maintained separately. One 
shared corporate officer and shared facili-
ties are not enough to permit such an sp. 
prose.. _See _Bono Leasing Carp. v. Dro-
ve Lumber- Ezport Co., 2E3 Or. 225, 228, 
582 P2d 4 (1978); SohJecht v. Equitable, 
Buaders, 272 Or. 92, 535 P.3d 86 (1975); 
Wakeman v. Paulson, 257 Or. 542, 480 Plci 
434 (1971); A. T Rase .9 Son, Ina v. Bd. of 
Funeral Dir., 31 Or_App. 537, 570 P. 1008 
(1977ts 

We also find no evidence to support a 
Ending that the rission was acting as the 
agent of Delphian in making the alleged 
miereprese.ntational° Our responsibaity at 
this stage of the proceedings is to decide 
whether there is any evidence which would 
support a reasonable inference of agency 
between the hfusion and Delphian. Brim 
r Morgan, 252 Or. 17, 496 P.2d 17 (1972). 
One Isreatial fe.111.3...."T of sgency in the right 
of the principal to control over the agent. 
"A business organization which operates in 
its sole and unlimited discretion is not as 
agent bat a principaL" Kuhns it az. v. 

17. Plainters brief responds to Delphian's argu-
ment u followc 

-Def annum' argument presumes, erreor 
ouch% that since these misrepresentations 
were made by 3001•0:134 from 'Mission of Da-
vis' rather than from 'Dolph= Foundation.' 
Delphian is Am/aced from liability no reamer 
hoer blatant the misstatements.- 

Miami c..ast motes the facts quoted above and osiciudac 'Am claim of no reisuorsseup 
between Minion and Delphian is absurd and 
contrary to all the rnctenoa." This misses the 
point—the issue is not whether there was a  

Stine Tar Com- = Or. 547, 555, 3.55 P.2d 
249 (1960); and see Res...a:amen: (Second) 
of Agency  H L 14 (1958). There s noth-
ing in the record before co to support an 
inference that Delphian had any right to 
controi the actions of the 3Ession or had 
actual control over those actions; therefore, 
there could be no finding of agency. 

Plaintiff contends that Delphian May be 
held liable on the basis of the following 
statements contained in the data sheet 
which was given to plaintiff to read wben 
she arrived at Deiphien, because these 
statements "confirmed" the misrepresenta-
tions made by the !C>. ion: 

"'hat some 'erten:Al' students be as
for tuitions accordance with our 

school and university structure_ 
.. • • • 

"That funding shell be by donations 
and endow-menu and by grants for spe-
cific projects, and that the full definition 
at allowable income routes be obtained 
and used 

II • • • 

"That apprenticeships be a standard 
part of any edocationai progrem. 

• • 4 • 

"That there be a designated faculty, 
both far primary/secondary school and 
for the University. 
.. • • 

"That the formal structure of a univer-
sty be created and maintained, and a 
program leading to accreditation be de-
veloped 

• • • • 

"That speMal attention be given to the 
maintenance of ethical relationships and 

reistiorishipc the issue is whether that reatice- 
sisip was so close as to give rise to joust or 
*Icarus= Liability. 

IL Beceuse of our disposition of thus issue we 
need o consider whether the dactruse of 
-pieretng the corporate veil-  should be spoiled 
differently. or if I may be epoded at alL to 
riaiiipous corporations. 

IL Pluntiff does not specifically dean that 
there was an agency rolatbassatp. 
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exchanges among the dynamics of TD F: 
this shall be the &ding prInMpie behind 
decisions u to :Atha. lc= and ortent,s-
tons in arehitecture, a.goulture. 
ry, unities. etc • ' • " 

strernents quoted above are con-
tained i/hCer a heeding "Policies" Plain-
tiff does not seem to claim that these are 
misrepresentations in thQmselves, and they 
could not fairiy be coftstrued u such. 
7,:ere is no evidence to suggest that they 
were not the policies of Delphi= neither 
do the statements show a connection be-
tween Delphian and the /fission sufficient 
to perrhit a finding of agency or an alter 
ego sitiaton. They do not aid plaintiff. 

Finally, plaintiff arras from the fact 
that Delphian "ectiyed some money from 
plaintiff and also received the benefit of 
her free labor that Delphian can be held 
liable for -misrepresentations made by the 
/fission. As with the COSOP :motion, we 
need not decide if that is a viable theory of 
recovery because, at the dose of all the 
evidence, the trial court struck plaintiffs 
claim that Delphian had received free Labor 
and vow paid money by plaintiff. Plaintiff 
has not contended hers that that was error. 

We conclude that there is no basis in this 
record for holding Delphian Liable for any 
misreprrnentations made to plaintiff and 
that its action for Erected verdict should 
have been granted.a 

7] Defendant Samuels' motion for di-
rected ye-di= was based on the ground that 
he had not participated in the alleged fraud 

ne. t:eiprcan argues that piamtiff 	already 
paid all the money she claims to have paid 
before she had any contact with Delphian and 
that_ therefore. there is no causal:We link be-
tween *Aunties de:mates and anything Delphi-
an tray have done. Plainuff did buy some 
books while at Deiphiart but it is sea dear 
'c!tiether the amount she spent far those books 
is included in the amount of damages she 

Ttrnuff s complaint Calmed that the 
was induced to pay the defendants 33.000-20. 
The renew that plaintiff introduced at trial 
add up to something more than that figure. 

22. Samuels is alleged to be IL-  hie catty became 
0c2 	president of the St Loon and Delphian. 
His liablity, therefore. is lirruted by the debility 
ct the Kamm. In the remainder of Una owe- 

and could not be held liable to plaintiff 
merely because he is the president of the 
Mission. The Oregon Supreme C6z)t 1='. held 
io Osborn* v. Hay, 224 Or. 133, 145-46, 58$ 
Pad 574 (1911), that 

" 	° in order to hold the offices of a 
corporation personally liable for fraud by 
an agent or employee of the corporation 
it is necessary to show tiant the officer 
had knowledge of the fraud, either actual 
or imputed, or that he persoriaily partici-
pated in the fraud. See liciariand r. 

Carisned Saaisariurn Ca, 68 Or. 530, 538-
537, 137 P. 209 (1914), and Hoff v. Penia-
rule Drainage Dirt., 172 Or. 630. 643, 243 
P.2d 471 (1943)." And .we Mc-Dona:eh r. 
Jones, 48 Or.App. 785, 617 Pad 948 
(1980), rev. den. 290 Or. 519 (19r 

There is evidence is the record from which 
a jury could have found that Samuels had 
isnowlefige of at least some of the alleged 
misrepresentation. It was not error to 
deny his motion for directed verdict on that 
begin 

The /fission asserted only constitotkonal 
grounds for its motion. Not all of the 
alleged representations are claimed to be 
religious and therefore the motion wu 
properly denied.22  

FREE EXERCISE CLAUSE DE:F.17..1SE-
We now consider the appropriate prom-

dures for dealing with a defense to an as
for fraud based on the Fret Eternise 

Clause of the First Amendment.n Defend- 

ice Use tam defendants refers to the Mission 
and Samuels. 

= Defendants claim that the statements Re-
garding the communications course. the Stu-
dent HAT course. Dianeudt and auditing are 
protected They do not claim that the gas.-
menu concerning Delphian or the statements 
regarding Huntern's educauorsal background 
are retie:dent 

ZS. Defendants rely on both the United States 
and the Oregon consutuuons for that defense. 
They do tem however. argue t?-,nt the scope or 
the Crepe corunituucei differs ertatersally helm 
that of the federal constitution and therefore. 
we refer oety to the IrIrst Amendment of the 
federal meistitin.1011 in discussant this defense. 
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ants made a pretrial motion to exclude from 
the trial "Lay evidence regarding the validi-
ty or sincerity of defend.ants' religious be-
liefs and practices." In the eltaintanve, 
they asked for a bearing 

• • • • to determine whether the 
courses, training, rtuer es, and counseling 
constitute a part of the religious beliefs 
and practices of defendants' religious or-
ganizations and are thus protected from 
inquiry as to their validity or sincerity by 
the Oregon and United States ectutth-
tions and applicable law interpretive 
thereof." 

That motion was denied At the close of 
the evidence, defendants moved to strike on 
various grounds certain of the spedfications 
of fraudulent statement'. As par. of that 
motion, defendants moved to strike 'end 
withdraw from the jury aD allegations re-
yarding the communications course, the 
Student HATcourse,.auctiting and Disziet-
los on the ground that they constitute reli-
gious practices of the defendants. That 
motion was also denied. Defendants assign 
error to the denial of both motions. As we 
will explain hereafter, the pretrial motion 
was premature, but the motion at the close 
of el the evidence property presented the 
querion for the Vial coi.untia consideration. 

[3] A: defense based on the Free Exer-
cise Clause presents particular difficultes 
in an action for fraud. To establish fraud 
a plaintiff must ordinarily prove that the 
representations made were false_ See 
Meader v. Francis Ford, Inc., 256 Or. 451. 
595 P.24 480 (1919). However, when reli-
gious beliefs and doctrines are involved, the 
truth or falsity of such religious beliefs or 
doctrines may not be submitted for deter-
mination by a jury. See United Stases v. 
litallard, 3= U.S. 78, 64 S.Ct. 882, 88 LEd. 
1148 (1944). The Supreme Court there stat-
ed; 

" • Freedom of thought which in-
e:ludes freedom of religious belief, is basic 
in a society of fret men. Board 
cation v. Barnette, 319 U.S. 624 [t.2 
1178. r7 Lit. 16281 It embraces the 
right to maintain theories of life and of 
death and of the hereafter which are  

:sax heresy to followers of the orthonca 
faiths. FIeresy 	are foreign to our 
Constitution. Men may believe what 
they cannot prove. They may not be put 
to the proof of their religious doctrines or 
beliefs Religious ex-riences which are 
as real as life to some may be inmropre- 
hensible to others. Yet the fact the: they 
may be beyond the ken of mortals does 
not mean that they can be made suspect 
before the law. Many take their gospel 
from the New Testament. But it would 
IsartDy be supposed that they could be 
triad before a jury charged with the duty 
of deter-xi:lin!. whether those teachings 
contained false representations. The 
miracles of the New Testament, the Di- 
vinity of Christ, life after death the pow- 
er of prayer are deep in the religious 
convictions of many. If one could be sent 
to jell because a jury in a bottle environ- 
ment found those .teschings false, little 
indeed would be left of religious freedom. 
The Fathers of the Constitution were not 
unaware of the varied and extreme views 
of religious sees, of the violence of disa-
greement among them, and of the leek of 
any one religious c-eed on which all men 
would agree They fashioned a charter 
of government which envisaged the wid-
est possible toleration of conflicUng 
views. Man's relation to his Gal was 
made no concern of the state. He was 
granted the right to worship as he 
pleased and to answer to no man for the 
verity of his religious views. The reli-
gious views espoused by respondents 
might seem incredible, if not preposter-
ous, to most people. But if those doc-
trines are subject to trial before a jury 
charged with finding their truth err falsi-
ty, then the same coo be done with the 
religious beliefs of any sect. When the 
triers of fun; underta'xe the task, they 
enter a forbidden domain.. The First 
Amendment does not select any one 
group or any one type of religion for 
preferred treatment. It puts them all in 
that position. Murdock r. Penaryivania. 
319 U.S. 10S [63 S.CL 370, r Lid 1Z2',. 
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As stated in Darin v. Season. 133 U.S. 

333, 342 [10 S.Ct ZS, 300, 33 L.Ed. 63"; 
th t'ree's reanor4 to his Maker and 

the oblige:ions he nay think they impose, 

and the manner in which an expression 

shall be made by him of his belief on 

those stbjects, no interference can be 

ix.rmitteci. provided always the laws of 

society, designed to secure its peace and 

prosperity, and the morals of its people, 

are not interfered with: " 	 at 

86-67, 54 S.Ct at 886 8?. 

Defendants here were asidng by both mo-

tions thAt the trial court determine which 

of the alleged marepresentadocs were reli-

gous and withdraw from the jury the issue 

of the t..-uth n falsity of those statements. 

Rather than make that determination, the 

trial court submitted to the jury the ques-

tion of whether the statements were reli-

-gious, with instructions that it wu not to 

_.-.. determine the troth or falsity of any state-

- ments it found to be religiouebi 

Defendants and amid argue that it is the 

responsibility of the trial court to determine 

la the nrst instance the religious character 

of statements alleged to be fraudulent and 

that, if it s determined that the staternente 

relate to religious beliefs or practices, fur-

ther inquiry is forbidden. They argue that 

subn...siot of the question to a jury makes 

the determination one that is not reviewa-

ble if era general verdict, leaving the poe-

sibEity that a defendant's adherence to un-

popular or unorthodox religious beliefs 

could be racide the basis for lialrIity. Plain-

tiff argues, on the other hand, that it is 

approprieta for the trial court to determine 

which statements are religious only if it can 

do so u a matter of law. She contends 

that, if the determination require resolu-

tion of questions of fact. that resolution is 

for the jury. Plaintiff further contends 

that the courses and practices in which she 

partiCpated were held out to her u secular 

and that she therefore is entitled to have a 

jury consider the allegedly fraudulent state- 

2t. Defends.nu  also win error to the Instruc- 
tion vven on the Free Exercise defense and to 

'..he failure of the trtsi court to save =rum 

menta because they were not religious in 

the context in which they were made 

Courts have had little occa.sion to consider 

the application of a Free Exercise Clause 

defense in an action for fraud in a jury 

trial. By far the majority of the came in 

this area have been non-jury cues We 

have found no cases which have considered 

this specific asue, and none have been cited 

to us. In fact, there has been little discus-

sion in even a general way of whether an 

action or statement is religious is a question 

of law or of fact In practice, the issue has 

been treated as one of fact by mazy courts, 

without dismesion. See, e.g., reclIer v. Ma- 

rurnsa, CV:it-dam Sch., 631 F.2e1 1144 (4th 

Cir. 1980); Brown v. Dade Mtristien 

.Schools. Inc., 556 F2ti sio (3th (fir. 1977); 

United States v. Carroll, 567'F.2d 965 (10th 

Cir. ism, but see United States it Silber. 

assn, 464 FS u pp. s6 (IL D. ria.1979); Pro-

pie it Mullins, 50 CaL.App.3d 61, 123 CaL 

Rptr. 201 (1.973). 

In Founding asureit of Scientology v. 

United States, 409 Fir! 1146 (D.C.Cir190), 

a false labeling case, the court cErected 

that, it a new teal were to follow its re-

mand of the ease to district court, 

" • • • it is incr.-I:Lb:at an the trial 

judge to roe in the first instance wheth-

er each item of alleged false labeling 

makes religious claims and hence cannot 

be submitted to the jury for the factual 

determination of whether it is a label for 

the device in question and whether it is 

false." (Footnote omitted.) etisi F.24 at 

1165. 

On remand, the district court interpreted 

this admonition to mean that the trial court 

should macre, from the jury's considerstion 

only those items which made "purely reli- 

rims" LPPeals. 
" • • • reserving a presentation of the 

other literature for determination under 

last:rue:ions differentiating the secoLar 

from tie religious" United States v. Art 

requested insu-ucuans. We consider thou as-
Inn:menu infra 
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tie* or Device, Etc., 333 F-Supp. 357, 361 
(D.D.C.1971). 

We agree with and adopt this spproach.a 
[9] ':'he jury 1.$ :he usual trier of fact in 

tort roses such as the one before us. Dis-
putes in the evidence should be resolved by 
the trier of fact. We conclude that the trial 
court was required to determine the reli-
gious character of the alleged misrepresen-
tations only if ft could do so ss a matter of 
aw, that is, if there was only one conclusion 

to be drawn from the evidence. We now 
turn to that question- . 

• The fundamental qualification for prow- . 
*jot based on the Freit Exercise Clause of 

• the First Amendment is that that which is 
sought to be protected must be `religions." 
Wisconsin v. Yoder, 406 U.S. 205, 215-.16. 92 
S.Ct. 1526, 1533, 32 L.F.,c1.2.4 15 (1972). The 

_Mission claims that Scientology is a religion 
and that statements regarding its beliefs 
and practices are protected-21  Plaintiff 

_does not contend that Scientolocv is Dot a 
- religion, bat instead 'concentrates on the 

particular representations at issue. She 
contends that those representations are not 
rerigious statements, no matter what the 

f, • 	 status of Scientology, and that the state- 
ments are therefore not protected by the 
rirst Amendment 

Plaintiff's apprear-h to this case has been 
to treat the alleged statements by defend- 
ants it vacua, but we do not believe that it 
is constitutionally permissible to approach 
them that way. In this use, the issue of 
whether the allegedly fraudulent state-
ments are entitled to the protection of the 
First Amendment involves several ques-
tions. Statements made by religious bodies 
must be viewed in the light of the doctrines 
of that religion. Courts may not at 
through the teachings of a religion and pick 
25. Although in V4.1C9f1.112A v. Yoder, 406 U.S. 

225. 12 S.Ct. 1326, 32 LEAL2c1 15 (1E. the 
Supreme COW'S seemed to undertake to deter-mule on its evert_ from the record as the ease. 
whether the ,hush parents %rho refused to 
send hear children to secondary sclux+1 Imre 
acting on the basis of relipous =cyst:con. 406 
1.1-S. at 215-16. 92 S.C. at 15313. the good pith 
religious belief of the wants was not clues. 

• 

• . 

▪ : . 
it- 

4 

Out individual statements for scrudny, de-
ading whether each standing alone is reli-
gious Whsle piainf has sjCpped past the 
issue of whether Scientology is a religion, 
we do not believe we can do so, because the 
answer to that vest on is pertinent to, 
although not dispoeitive of, the determina-
tion of whether the statements made by the 
agents of the Mission are religious 

The Supreme Court stated in Wisconsin 
v. Yoder, supra, 

" • • ' Although a determinaton of 
what is a 'religious' belief or practice 
entitled to consttotorial protection may 
present a most delicate qoestioet, the very 
concept of ordered liberty precludes al-
lowing every person to make his own 
standards on matters of conduct in which 
society as a whole has important inter-
ests." 406 U.S. at 215-16, 92 S.Ct. at 
1=3. (Footnote omitted.) 

And, as noted by the court in Founding 
Moron of .iesitology v‘j,laited States, =p-
pm 

° ° * Though litigeon of the ques-
tion whether a given group or set of 
beliefs is ors not religious is a delicate 
business, our. legal system sometimes re-
quint' it so that secular enterprSes may 
not unjustly enjoy the immunities grant-
ed to the sacred When tax exemptions 
are greeted - to churches, litigation con-
cerning what is or is not a church wlil 
follow. When exemption from military 
service is granted to those who object on 
religious grounds, there is similar Utica-

or,. When otherwise pram-iced son-
stances are permitted to be used for pur-
poses of worship, worship must be 
defined The law has provided dee:int' 
and definitions, unsatisfactory is they 
may be, to deal with such disputes. • • " 
409 F.24 1160. 

tioned by the ROLL There was no fact dispute 
to be resoived. 

21. Because defendant Samuels is linty sought 
to be held Usti, Getty as president of the ML.-
tied. we look to the prvtection afforded the 
limed Unwed city be Reid orify to the 
ascent the M:Lsaims is liable. 

C 

:7 
. 
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(10.11] Without attempting as "unprec-
edented clefiruLian at religion," 3faicai v. 
Yoe:, 440 F.Supp. 1234, 1320 (D.N.J.1917), 
en, 5e2 F.24 1.9.7 (3d Cyr. 1.779), we draw 
vide= from the case law. We find that. 
while beliefs relating to the e.xistenos of, 
and man's relationship to, a God are cer-
tainly religious, beget in a traditional, or 
any, 'god" is not a prerequisite to a finding 
that a belief is religious. Toricuo v. Wit-
kin.s. 367 U.S. 488, $1 S.Ct. 1680, 6 L.Ed-24 

Everson r. Board of EducaszOn, 
330 1.%11 C S.Ct. 504, 91 LSI. 11, 168 
A.L.R. 1392 (1947); Wlibler:412 Ethical 
Sou 	District of Columbia., 249 F 2d 127 
(D.C.Mr.1957); Mahal v. Yogi, supra; Fel-
lowship of Humanity v. County of Alameda, 
153 CaLApp.al 673, 315 P.23 394 (1967). 
Neither does the fact that Scientology a of 
relatively recent origin mean that it is not 
=titled to the proteeSoz of the First
Amendment. See Lamy v. Scurr, 474 
F.Supp. 1186 (S.D.Iowa 1979); lfainei v. 
Yogi, -  supra; Remmers v. Brewer, 361 

• P.Siipp. 537 (S.D.lows 1973); -.see abo Unit-
ed States v. Ballard, supra; Founding 
numb of Scientology. v. United States, su-
pra. On the other hand, 

"ltal way of life, however, virtuous and 
admireble, Cis not entitled to Fruit 
Amendment protection] if based on pure-
ly secular considerations. 

• • • . 

"Thus, if the Amish asserted their 
claims because of their subjectve rralua-
Vac *ad rejection of contemporary secu-
lar values accepted by the majority, much 
u Thoreau rejected the social values of 
his time and isolated himself at Walden 
Pond, their claims would not rest on a 
religious basis. Thoreau's choice wu 
philosophical and personal rather than re-
ligious, and welt belief dome not rise to 
the demands of the Religion Clauses.* 
WES:12 nii r. Yoder, supra, 406 LT.S. at 
215-16, 92 S.CL at 1533; see sin, United 
States r. Seeger, 330 U.S. 168, 176. 8.5 
S.CL 850, 859, 13 LEAL2d 733 (1965)1 and 
see We r. United States, 398 U.S. 333, 
90 S.CL 1792. 25 LEd-2d 308 (1970). 

Cour.s may not. of course, judge the 
"truth" or falsity" of the beliefs espoused 
by a group in clo-c-mizting its status u a 
religion: the inquiry here is simply whether 
the teachings of Scientology are of the type 
that qualify for the protection of the Free 
Ezere.se Clause. The record in this case 
demonstrates indisputably that they are. 
Although certain of the theories espoused 
by Scientology appear to be more psycho-
logical than religious, we cannot deism the 
body of beliefs into individual component*. 
It seems dear that if defendants smelt to 
teach Scientology in the public schools in 
this country, they would be prohibited from 
doing so by reason of the Est:bailment 
Clause of the Fu-st Amendment See Ma3-
ask T. Yogi, sup:e; 41:CMCII T. Arta:rms. 
393 T.T.S. 97, 89 S.Ct. 235„ 21 I  ;'A 	225 
(1968). The theories of Hubbard are in-
terrelated and involve a theory of the na-
bare of the person and of the individual's 
relationship with the universe. See Found-
ing Cburch of Scientology v. United States, 
409 F.2d at 1100. 

(12] The Passion is incorpoeated u a 
tax-exempt ?egglass organization; it has 
ordained ministers and characterizes itself 
as a church. It has a system of beliefs, or 
creed, which encompasses beliefs which are 
religious is character. We condole that 
Scientology is a religion and that the Kw 
lion is a religious organization entitled to 
invoke the protection of the Free Exercise 
Clause. 

(U] The second inquiry to be toads in 
determining whether the statements at is-
sue are protected is whether those state-
ments relate to the religious beliefs and 
practices of the Mission. It is clear that a 
religious organization, inertly becalm it is 
such, is not shielded by the First Amend-
ment from all gabalty for fraud. See 
Founding Church of Scientology T. United 
States, supra.: see also Cantwell V. Connect-
ient, 310 US. 29e, 60 S.Ct 900, 34 LEd. 
1.213 (1940). If the statements involved 
here do not concern the religious beliefs and 
practmes of the Mission, the Free ).:sertise 
Clause provides no defense to plaintiffs 
action. Defendant presented evidence that 
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the courses and auditing in which plaintiff 
partiCpated. and abort which the alleged 
misrepresentstions were ride, were part of 
the religious beliefs and practices of Scien-
tology. Plaintiff did not, and does not, 

_contest that fact. 
The final inquiry involved in determining 

whether the alleged misrepresentations are 
protected by the First Amendment is 
whether the statements, although made on 
behalf of a religiout organizadoe an4 hay-
ing a religious character, were nonetheless 
made for a wholly secular purpose. Al-
though we find that it has been established 
in this record that Scientology is a religion, 
that the Mission is a religious organization 
and that the statements which art &Aimed 
to be religious relate to religious beliefs and 
practices of Scientology, plaintiff did 

. presentevidencethet the courses end 
ing she received were offered to her on an 
entirely secular baits for self-improvement, 

_thereby creating a jury issue as to that 
matter. Plaintiff testified that she was 
told that the term 'religion" and "church' 
were used only for public relations purr-
;uses. SI5e also presented testimony from a 
formw Mission staff member that the staff 
was instructed to avoid the issue of religion 
when attempting to interest soznednel in 

27. It is tuuestad in Weiss. PrIss3ere. Posture 
and Protect-Jaw "Ialistess" la the Law. 73 Yale 
LI 5613. hoe (IMO, that 

"Because religion can be in eoetflia with 
other triactptina because it cuts across 
everyday life. we ern only know that a dads 
O based on religoss when we are toed that is 
O. The legal bans for suiting that a duns is 
in the religious domain can be that et is hotel 
Mit U being religious in nature. .. • • 

'Saes the Consuenlon prohibits defining 
an area of belief as 'religunia.' a nun anon 
rns.ke it dear that the beliefs he represents 
are 'religious' if he wants to be free to ex-
press them runlet this mrisonntonal warrant 
of freedom d reSigoos belief. He has the birds of conserrunicaung that he speaks 
osty trans the authority of minivan. But. 
once such a burden has been met then we 
cannot attack the particular aspects of his faith as fraudulent 

. • • • 
'What a man presents as a religious doom 

then. cannot be attacked it is =ay when be 
rrokes a rtpresen L 1 on beyond religious au-
chanty that we can apply Laws of fraud.' 

SCentoiocv and that, e pressed, they were  
to say that it is not a reiiron.r 

C14] There is, on the other hand, evi-
dence that plaint!: joined the Clarn.h of 
Scientology and that she wu told that the 
courses and practices were religious in na-
ture. Many of the meter:els which she read 
contained a statement inside the front cove:-
which indicated that Scientology is a reli-
gion, that auditing a a religious practce 
and that the E-rneter a a religious ard-
fadct.a 

In United Stites v, Article er _Dgekig. 
Eta, supra 3 i F.Supp. at 3b -3&, the 
district court, sitting without a jury, found 
that Scientology barrios were offered on 
both a religious Ind .& secular basis and that 
the E-meter was 	branded because much 
of the literature explaining its use and ex-
pounding on its value _was presented in an 
entirely non-religious context The court 
recognized that complete coodemnation of 
the E-meter would encoacli upon the reli-
gious freedom of thou who used the device 
as a religious artifact It therefore ordered 
the device condemned with the prov-sion 
that it could be distributed only for use in 
bona fide religious counseling. This use 

As artractive as this anatyns may be. we do not 
believe that It has be the approach taken by 
the courts is corasdartag cleans for prixectson 
under the rust Amendment As et Weisel v. 
United Starts. supra, sad Malriak v. Yoga sir 
girt. the proponents of a particular doctrine 
tray urronttangiy fat] to define as "retigosia" 
what it in fact conentiationaity 71rxecxed as 
such. 

211. It is dear that in the context of the Es:Wit-
h:hose= cause the chancterization of the ac-
tivity as noes-religious is not a detarrran.auve 
factor. See ,Waistaft v. Yogi. litprr sae also 
Ens* v. VItske. 370 US. 421. C S.C.L. 12C. II 
1-Ld.24 601. $6 LR2d I:SS (19C Torcasio 
v. wet ms. 367 U.S. 416, SI S.C. 1630. 6 
LEAL2d 962 (1961}: Welsh v. Wised Sates, 
supra. On the other harts the charact erszatton 
of beliefs as relipous by one wean( the pro-
w-von of the Free Lteresoe Cause is sec deter-
=num ether. See WISCOASZTV v. Yceisr, w-
pm. 406 U.S. at 215-11. C S.C. at 15= 
Pouncing Church of Soeruotoce v. (lasted 
States, supra: People v. Woody. 40 CaLlitptr. 
U. 294 1.2d 113 (1964k Unsure States v. Kat.% 

Stapp. 439 	C.:961). • 



CHRISTOFTVLSON v. CHURCH OF SC'tTOLOGY, ETC. Or. 603 
C7le Or-4m. 044 Pia 1177 

differs from Unitise' StoLes v. Arzcle or 

Dev, Etc.. supra. in that the court there 

pointed out that there were orgenizatiors 

other than the Founding Church of Scien-

tology that were using the E-meter and 

offering auditing services. It was the ass 

of the E-roeter by the secular organizations 

which the court forbade. The court did not 

consider whether use by the G3urtb mold 

be on a secular as well as on a religious 

basis. We believe that such a possaility 

exists. 

There are certainly ideas which may only 

be classified as religious. Statements re-

garding the nature of a supreme being, the 

value of prayer and worship are such stare-

aehta. e e caw also, however. SLAW- 

"rbents which ars religious only because 

those "espousing them make them for a rail-

-eons purpose. .The statements which are 

alleged by plaintiff to be misrepresents-

-:tioas is this case are not of the type which 

must always and in every contest be con-

sidered religious as a matter of law. 

[15] We have found that it is estab-

lished in this rase that the Mission is a 

religious organization and that Scientology 

is a religion. Plaintiff does not dispute the 

claim that the courses and auditing she 

received are part of the religious beliefs and 

practices of Scientolocy. It is Liao oiscon-

troverted that plaintiff applied to join the 

Church of -Scientology, Mission of Davis, 

before taking any of the courses offered. 

These facts may be highly persuasive evi-

dence of the contention that the courses and 

auditing plaintiff received were religious in 

nature and that the statements made re-

girding their nature and efficacy were reli-

gious etatarnenta. There is, however, con-

flicting evidence which the jury was enti-

tled to consider. Plaintiff presented eri-

dence from which it could be concluded that 

the courses and auditing were also offered 

on a wholly secular basis. Because the 

steer's:nu were not aimessort7y religious. 

plalnif was entitled to have a jury =-

eider, under proper instructions. the ques-

tion of whether the statements were made 

for a wholly non-religious purpose. The 

trial court was correct therefore, in re- 

fusing to rule before trial as to whether 

these alleged soetements were religious. It 

was likewise correct in refusing to with-

draw the statements from the jury's consid-

eration. 

We turn now to the question of the pep-

er instructions to be given the jury is cots-

sidering the allegations of fraud in this 

contest 

FIRST A-NLLNTDMLN'T INSTRUCTION 

[16] Defendants objected to the riving 

of the following instruction regerding the 

First Amendment defense: 

'The defeadaeta have Asserted as an 

affirmative defense that the Coostito-

tionr of the United States sad the State 

of Oregon provide that religious beliefs 

and doctrines may not be questioned for 

truth or falsity. To establish this de-

fame, defendants must prove that each of 
.the acts -or-representations complained of 

went religious in nature and were held 

out as such to plaintiff. 

'They must further prove that if the 

acts and representations complained of 

were held out LS religious in =tun, that 

they were held out by defendants as good 

faith religious beliefs and doctrine. 

Therefore, if you find that the sets or 

representations complained of were acts 

or representations religious in nature sad 

held out as such. and held in goad faith 

belief, then you may not inquire into the 

tooth or falsity of such acts or represen-

tation& Your inquiry must end and your 

verdict shaft be for the &attestants. 

However, should you determine that any 

of the ars or representations complained 

of ware not religious in nature or were 

not held out as such to the plaintiff, or 

were not held to be such in good faith. 

then you may determine the truth or 

falsity of suen at= or repress:tenons.* 

We find the instruction to be an inamarsta 

statement of the law as it applies to this 

case and conclude that reverml of the judg-

ment on the fraud cause of action in re-

quired. 
Defendants first object to the Su be2i116021 

to the jury of the question of the rerigious 
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lief is a prober subject for inquiry in an 
Exton for fraud. We do not read Beard so 
to hold. In Ballard. a =mina: action for 
mail fraud, the pages agreed in the trial 
court that the issue of the troth or falsity 
of the statements at issue would not be 
submitted to the jury, but only the question 
of whether the defendants honesty and stn-
oerely believed the statements they made. 
After a jury verdict finding them guilty, 
the defendants contended that it was im-
proper to withcLne from the jury the ques-
tion of whether the statements made were 
true sr false The Circuit Court of Appeals 
agreed and reversed the convict-on. On 
appeal. the Supreme Court held that 
• • " the District Court ruled properiy 
when it withheld from this jury all qua,-
tons concerning the truth ,or falsity of the 
religicu: 1.:‘-eft or doctrinu of [the. infond-
ants]." _The Court-then noted that the de-
fendents urged other grounds for support-
ing the - reversal of the-nonvictions, but it 
refused to consider those costentiocts before 
giving the circuit court an opportunity to 
ex~ruide_• the isvoee rrvt. 
S.Ct. at 887. Ballard did not address the 
question of the propriety of submitting the . 
issue cf the defendant' minority t the 
jury. In addition, the defendants in Ballard 
were the very individuals accused of actual-
ly making the statements at Seca The 
liability of a religious orgatizatioo for the 
statements of its agents was not discussed. 

In the situation presented here, it is diffi-
cult to determine whose sincerity or good 
faith the jury could be asked to determine. 
Is the religious organization to be held 

it one of its ministers is less than a true 
believer? Or is it to be saved from liability 
if the individual who rnakei the statement 
truly believes, but others it the church do 
ocC 

In Founding Church of Scientology v. 
United States, supra the court suggested 
that liability might attach if it were shown 

" • • • that an item (book, pamphlet, 
advertising flier) makes tut a self-suffi-
cient non-religious claim for Scientology 
services, to which s relieous appeal 

nature of the statements. That submission 
was not error. liovvever, the directions for 
determination of that issue were erroneous. 
This record er.ablishes that Scientology is a 
religion and that the Mission S a religious 
organisation. It aiso establishes that the 
courses and auditing which plaintiff was 
induced to pertiSpate iti are 	of the 
religious beliefs and practice: of Scien-
tology. The Mission is, therefore, entitled 
to the protection of the First Amendment 
for staterne. 	regarding its religious be- 
atf3 &Dd preetces unless it is shown that 
the statements made were part of an offer 
of those services to the public on a wholly 
secular hese. 	"reesonable inference to 
be drawn from the instruction as given is 
that a determination should be :sada for 

-"awls of the alleged misrepresentations as to 
-:_whether it was religious and whether it was 

held out to plaintiff as religious in nature. 
_ This fragments the inquiry inappropriately. 
_The question _which the jury was required 
to decide in this case was whether, even 
though the Mission is a religious orgenisa-
ton, it offered the services in question here 
on • wholly non-religious 	See Foul:e- 
ine Church of Scientology T. United States, 
supra. It is only upon an affirmative find-
ing on that issue that liability can sttstio 
for the statements made in this case. The 
jury was not gorrectly instructed in that 
regerd. 

In addition, the instr=uction that the state-
ments oust be held out as religious in good 
faith is not arx-..lrata The question of 
"pod faith" belief S quite complicated in 
this case, for the defendants charged with 
fraud are not the individuals who made the 
representations, but the religious organiza-
tions thernselves. It is true that in many 
eases in which fret exercise prows:eke has 
been sought, cours have looked to whether 
the one seeking the protection is °sincere 
in his or her belief in the doctrine at Same. 
See. e.g., Feccie v. Woody, supra; Teterud 
r. Burs:. 522 Fidl 3.57 (8th Cir. 1913). 
Those mein, however, involve the sincerity 
of the individual claiming the prowl:am. 

United States r. Ballard, supra, has been 
cited to us for the proposition that the 
sincerity of the proponents of religious be- 
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granted. The instruction which was given 
regarding the Free Exercise defense assert-
ed by the remaining defendants was ermine- 
04.11 and requires reversaL 

been merely tacked on." 409 F.11 at 
Um (Emphasis supplied.) 

As we have indicated. defendants could be 
bald liable if the jury found that the 
courses and services offered by the Mission 
to plaintiff were offered fora wholly secii-
ler purpose. A wholly secular purpose 
means that., at the time they were made to 
this plaintiff, the statements were made for 
a purpose other than induciag plaintiff to 
join or participate in defendants' religion. 
A wholly secular purpose, in this regard. 
would include, but not be limited to, the 
intention solely to obtain money from plain-
tiff. On this record it would have been 
proper to instruct the jury that it is possible 
to find that the services were offered on a 
wholly secular basis, notwithstanding the 
fact that plaintiff was required to join the 
Cbureh of Scientology in order to partici-
pate and that the unitarian she was given 

_to_read stated that Scientology a a religion. 
A jury could find that the courses and 
NIFfitel were offered on a sectiler basis end 
that s religious designation had been mere-
ly `tacked on. Phrasing the Urn as one 
of good faith was therefore misleading and 
&MIMI= 

Defendants also contend that the instruc 
tion improperly placed on them the burden 
of proof on the question of the religious 
nature of the representation& They con-
tend Chit' it was improper to require that 
they prove the statements were religious 
when it was plaintiffs burden to prove 
knowledge of falsity to ?swear for fraud. 
T".efenclarte:infuse the burden of proving 
fraud with the burden of proving the af-
firmative defense of freedom of religion. 
As this instruction indicates, it is appropri-
ate for the jury to consider the master of 
the defense first, before reaching the issue 
of the troth or falsity of the statements for 
deciding the issue of fraud. That approach 
make good sense in this contest 

In summary, we conclude that the mo- 
tions of all defendants for direrted verdicts 
on the claims for outrageous ecoocloct should 
have been plated. The =rims of COSOP 
and Delphian for directed verdicts on plain-
tiffs action for fraud should have also been 

Because of the disposition we have made 
of the causes of action and counts, this cue 
wall have to be retried. We now turn to the 
assignments of error which raise issues 
which are 'Duly to arise on re-trial. 

=BITS 
(17,131 Defendants assign error to the 

exclusion of three exhibits  offered to show 
the good faith of the individual wbo in-
formed plaintiff that L. Ron Hubbard had 
as honorary degree from Sequoia Universi-
ty and a degree from Princeton University. 
Those ululits were photocopies of a tele-
gram and two certificate& Plaintiff object-
ed to the exhibits on the grounds at lack of 
autbenrlowdon and hearsay. The objections 

":were sustained. Those objections were not 
well taken. The eataits were offered to 
show the state of mind of the individual 
who made the representations regarding 
Iflubbarifs background to pinintiff. That 
individual testified that he had seen the 
exhibits before talking with plaintiff and 
believed them to be true. Neither the truth 
of the matter contained in the exhibits nor 
their authenticity was asserted by defend-
ant& The state of mind of the one acrused 
of =eking fraudulent representations is 
dearly at issue where one of the elements 
to be shown is the speaker's knowledge of 
the falsity of the representation being 
nada. Sae Linebaugli r. ?ortend Mort,  
gage Ca., 116 Or. 1, 239 P. 196 (1925); 
Seaside, City of v. Reaches, 92 Or. 550, 130 
P. 319 (1.919). The exhibits were relevant 
to that state of mind, and their axe-Iv:ion 
was error. 

INSTRUCTIONS 
[19) Defendants assign error to the giv-

ing of certain instructions and the failure to 
give other instructions. The first assign-
ment we consider is the failure of the trial 
court to give defendants' requested instruc-
tion defining "justifiable reliance" as fol-
lows: 
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"A party claiming to have been  de-
frauded by a false representation must 
not only have acted in reliance thereon. 
but must have been justified in such re-
liance, that is, the situation must have 
been such as to melee it reasonabis for 
him, in the light of the circumstances and 
his intelligence, experience and knowl-
edge, to accept the representation with-
out making an independent inquiry or 
investigation." 
The court instricted the jury that to find 

for plaintiff it must find that " • • • the 
plaintiff haring a right to do so, reasonably 
relied upon the representation and did not 
know it was false." We believe the instruc-
tion given by the trial court "adequately 
and accurately state[d] the applicable law." 
3oeids v. Taggatil Ponta d, 245 Or. 86, 95, 
419 P. 414 (1966); see also Yardley v. 
Rucker Brothers Trueirinc Inc., 42 Or.App. 
239, 600 P.2d 485 (1979), per. den. 223 Or. 

--ass (10).  It:wai not error for the trial 
court to refuse to give the instruction re-
quested by defendants. 

(20] Defendants also assign error to the 
failure to rive their requested instruction 
defining "material fact" The court in-
strucued the jury that there must have been 
"a false representation of material face in 
order to find for the plaintiff on her fraud 
claim- Defendants requested the following 
instruction defining "material fact": 

"A fact is material if a reasonably pru-
dent person under the circumstances 
would attach importance to it in deter-
mining his mune of action." 
Plaintiff does not contend that this in-

/traction is an incorrect statement of the 

211. Defendants' requested instructions were es 
Wow= 

The First Amendment to the United 
States Consutuuon provides that: 'Congress 
shall nuke no Lew respecting the establish-
man of reiision or prohibiting the free cur-
ease thereof.' 

'The Fourteenth Amendment to the United 
Stews Connutution provides that: ' • • • Poo 
state shall auks or enforce any Lew which 
shall sand* Use privileges or imsnmities 
=Luca of the United State= nor shad any 
state deprive any person of lite. ilberty or 
property. without due process of Law; nor 

law, but only that it was unnecessary to 
instruct the- jury on the meaning of the 
term material because that tar= was used 
in its usual and conventional sense. We 
disagree that the instruction was unneces-
sary. The term "material fact,' as it is 
used as an element of an action far fraud. 
involves the had of objective standard in-
cluded in the requested instruction. Sea 
11171aen v. Green. 223 Or. 253, 583 P.2d 548 
(1973). The dictionary definition of "mate-
riel." 'being of real importance or great 
consequence," Webster's Third Internation. 
el Dictionary, does not contain that objec-
tive element. Defendants were entitled to 
have the jury instructed on the definition of 
the term which constitutes an element of 
the acion against which they were deem& 

[21] Defendants also contend that the 
.real court erred in failing to instruct the 
jury that 'tread is never presumed." 
Within the context of the instruction, as i 
whole, set Yardley e. Rocker Brothers 
Trucking, Inc. sapra, we believe the jury 
was adequately instructed in that regard, 
and the failure to give the instroctien was 

not error. 

[22] Defendants assign error to the fail- 
ure to give their requested instructions cap-
taining the specific language of the First 
and Fourteenth Amendments to the United 
States Constitution and Article I, Sections 2 
and 3 of the Oregon C.cisititatioet.S  The 
refusal to give such instructions was not 
error. The language of the censtitztional 
provisions is not by itself a statement of the 
law which was necessary or even particilar-
ly helpful to the jury in resolving the issues 

dairy any person within iu Jurisdiction equal 
protection of the laws.' 

-Articie I. Section 2 of the Oregon Comb-
mon provides under Freedom of Worsistm 
'Ail men shall be secure in the natural right. 
to worship Alm glary God assuring to Use 
dictates of char awn consciences.' 

'Article 1. Somme 3 of the Oregon Coned-
mune under Freedom of Pteiiipous Optima's 
proviclec Ns law shall in any cue wrieurrer. 
comet the free interema, and enjoyment of 
religious opanorts. or interfere with the rights 

conscisess' • 
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in this caw Although ft might not have 
been error to give such as instruction, nei-
ther was it error to refuse to do so. 

mu FloeIly, defendants amigo ernr to 
the refusal to eve the following instruc-
tion: 

NIThe parna have stipulated that 
ScitatttlOgy is a religion. I instruct you 
that for all purposes in this case Scientol-
ova i3 a religion and the. Church of Snen-
taloa, bir.isaion of Davis, and Mann of 
$cientology of Portland are religious in-
stitutions." 

The first portion of their requested instruc-
tion is not correct. PLaintiff did not stipu-
late that Scientoloy is a rdig ea. Sbe 
chore to approach the problems presented in 
this litigation on the basis that it did not 

- matter vbetber Scientology is a religion, 
-_-_because the_defendants Wald be_llable in 
-any event. That does not _amount to a 

stipulation that Scientology -is a religion. 
However, we have determined that the rec-
ord in this ease establishes, as a matter of 
law, that Scientology is a religion. The 
jury should have been so informed. 

FLTNITIVE DAMAGES 
The final assignment of envy we con-

sider a is the failure of the trial court, on 
'notion by defendants, to withdraw from 
the'lary the delta for punitive damages, 
In the trial court and in this mart defend-
ants rely on Wheeler r. Green, 299 Or. 99, 
5i6 P.Z:I 77: arm for the proposition that 
imposition of punitive damages is constitu-
tioaally inspermiesilole la the contact of free 

31. Ciefimilants' other assignments of error an 
eider mecum by our disposals:es of the issues 
isie Nave dfacusaad were not preserved in the 
Girt esert. or are. as wet,  milinsaciea unlikely to 
Mee as= as re-criaL. 

31. Mender at Green. mgrs. is based on the 
Ctn.= Constitution. Defendants aiia Teo as 
Gertz v. Robert Welch lac- 411 U.S. 322. $4 
L . 2207. 41 LEd.24 711 (1174), for the prow 
males that punitive damages are conszatucion-
ally inspermussibie for defamation. Gera. bow 
ewe, dons not bald that punttive amasses guy 
nevw be awarded for din:ratio& The Cott 
mras concerned wan the setf.canearalue of me• 
die deinn dam wIncti minx run& from the 
possibility of punitive damage awards ember 

spsisch.sa Defendants comend that that 
proposition also applies to the arm of free 
exercise of religion and that statements ar-
guably religious shoold not subject one to 
liability for punitive damages because of 
the uchEring effect" such awards could have 
on the practice of religion. They alike only 
constitutional arguments and do not argue 
that the case is otherwise inappropriate for 
an award of punitive damages. 

After the briefs in this ease were sub-
mitted, the Oregon Supreme Court decided 
Hall r. May Department Stares Co. supra. 
in which it held that punitive damages art 
not available in an action for outrageous 
conduct in which the only rood= which 
subjects the defendant to liability  is 
'speech." The court stated: 

:.'When the cease od defendant's liabili-
ty is his 'abuse' of speech and expression, 

case of defamation Wheeler v. 
'_Green _bolds _that Ithe..eresponsibliity for 
...the abase' is confined to civil liability far 

compensation may. Here the injury was 
to plaintiff's person rather than her repu-
tation, bat as long as it resulted from an 
`abuse' of speech only, the principle is the 
soma" 292 Or. at 146, 637 P.2d 126. 
It might well be argued oa the bans of 

the above limper that any fraud which 
involves an abuse of speech or exisow:on is 
similarly exempt from the imposition of 
punitive damages. The Supreme Court has. 
however, recognized the pienbiTity of an 
award of punitive damages in cams involv-
ing fraud in several recent opinions. Sas. 
414, Schmidt v. Mn. Ti.r Land Dew, 291 
Or. 462, 01 P2d 1213 (1M); hel7res 

eats laws requiring loss thin a showing of 
actual malice. The Coat minuet 

'We also find no justification for allowing 
swans of punkin damages against pubiLsh-
ws and broadcasters held Sabi* under state-
dafthed standards of 11Labalry for &lameness. 
• • • to sham the private defamation pia:n-
et! wins asitablishat liability anew a less de--
mending standard than Mat stated by New 
York Mhos (Ca. v. &diva" 37$ US. 2.54, 14 
S.CL no. 11 LF.d..14 Slit 95 A.L.A.24 1412 
(1114). that is 'actual eialicel cur recover 
only such damages as are suffice* to coo-
peitsate bias for actual injury.' 4111 U.S. at 
3110. 114 &CM at 301.2. 



dation; reversed and remanded for 
trial as to defendants Samuels and C 
of Scientology,  Mission of Davis. 

• • • • 
• 

• - 
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Green, supra; Green Y. Uacle DOD 'S .ifobae 
aty, 279 Or. 425, sem P. 	1.475 (1977). 
Although we art not certain jut what the 
analytical distinction is, given the broad 
language is Hail, Vni do not believe that the 
Supreme Court intended to pritultit the 
award of punitive damages is all cues of 
fraud, and ve decline to do so item 

Defendant', arguing without 'benefit' of 
Hag do not claim that ail fraud is exempt 
from the imposition of punitive denser:a, 

_bat that • • • • is the seteitive 	af 
First Amendment freedoms, a plaintiff can 
recover only compensautey damages" 
They contend that the imposition of pm:xi-
thee:la:nags erecdel have a:cisMing effect. 

toot only o the etrtre nf f: as spied.: and 
- -zasacciation, bat on the free exercise of reli-

gion as veil 
(704, 2S) As we bare stated, In do Bat 

agree that punitive damages are onavaas-
hie for fraud merely because the fraudulent 
retires :stations are "speecl." Defendants 
suggest that because the actions giving rise 
to this cause of action occurred is the con- 
text of a religion organisation of which 

'plaintiff was a member, the free exercise of 
religion would be eitaled by the possibility 
of a punitive damage award. We do not 
believe that such a thsrung effect is a threat 
to the free ezernae of ridigion. In order to 
be actionable at all, the statements alleged 
must be found to Nave been non-regious as 
mutt Defendants' argument sums to lead 
to the conclusion that religious organiza-
tions should not be made liable for punitive 
damages because they art religious organi-
sties, eves if the content d the state-
mute which they are alleged to have mad* 
is not religious.. We find no oxistitutional 
requirement for seek an exemption. The 
free exercise of religion is sufficiently pro. 
tamed by the breed scope of what it pro-
tected as religious belief and practice and 
the fact that the troth or faint',  of such . 
religions beliefs may not be- determined in 
an action for fraud. The trial court proper-
ly denied defendants' 211:6011 to mate the 
claim for punitive damage& 

Reversed u to defendants Church of 
Scientology of Portland and Delphian Foun- 

97 Or-App. 2SI 
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State appealed from an order of 
Clrettit Court, Cohuisbia County, Dolbeit 
Kayer, J, dismissing charge of criani 
treepeas in the second degree as don. 
jeopardy grounds after defendant vu a 
rinsed of contempt and fined for the lc 
cceduct which bad resulted is the trivia 
charge. The Court of Appeals, Thorntc 
J., held that defendant's punishment for 
indirect coot rapt Faulting from his disot 
diem* of a restraining order did not b 
pros 	on for criminal trespus is t 
second degree involving the same fac 

Reversed and remanded. 
Vas Hoorrtiesen, J., dissented and fil• 

an opinion is winch Joseph. C. J.. Mahar 
son and Briber, 

L. Contempt 0.4 
Ia • •chil contempt" the aseteedac 

violates a decree or order of the court mad 
for the benefit of an adverse party litigan• 

See ponlicanon Words and Phrases 
for ocher judicial construe:mons and 
definite:1m 
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SUPREME COURT, APPELLATE. DIVISION 

FIRST DEPARTMENT, February 1992 

Joseph P. Sullivan, 
John Carro 
Ernst E. Rosenberger 
Richard W. Wallach 
Israel Rubin, 

J.P. 
A 	fi g' 

JJ. 

x 

Ivana  Trump, 

R-95% 

Plaintiff-Respondent, 
45386 

,against- 	 and 
M-177 

Dona13',24 Trump, 

Defendant-Appellant. 

Defen ►nt-appellant appeals from a supplemental 
judgment, Supreme Court, New York County 
(Phyllis Gangel-Jacob, J.), entered May 29, 
1991, which,.pursuant to a stipulation of 
settlement, resolved the plaintiff's action 
challenging the.enforceability of the 
parties' post-nuptial agreement. 

Jay Goldberg, of counsel (Judd Burstein, with 
him on the brief, Tenzer, Greenblatt, Fallon 
and Replan, attorneys) for defendant- • 
appellant, 

-Robert Stephan Cohen, of counsel (Jonathan W. 
Lubell.and Arlene R. Baler, with him on the 
briefi. Morrison Cohen SingerAt Weinstein, 
attorneys) for plaintiff-respondent. 
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SULL7AN, J. 

The husband appeals from a supplemental judgment which, 

pursant to a stipulation of settlement, resolved the wife's 

action challenging the enforceability of the parties' post-

nuptial agreement In their stipulation, the parties, subject to 

a nulber of specific modifications not.hore relevant, explicitly 

ratified the post-nuptial agreement, including a certain 

coif dentiality provision. A proposed supplemental judgment 

inco orating by reference the post-nuptial agreement, as 

modified by the stipulation'of settlement, was thereafter 

submitted to the court, which, sue spontt, without notice to the 

partie s or explanation, excluded the confidentiality provision 

from incorporation into the supplemental judgment. Since the 

courtk unilateral action in deleting the confidentiality 

provijsion was both unjustified and unauthorized, we modify to 

vacs e the deletion. 

Married on April 9, 1977, the parties, with the advice of 

separate counsel, on December 24, 1987, entered into a post-

nuptial agreement (the Agreement), which superceded three prior 

agrenmentA dated March 22, 1977, July 24, 1979 and May 25, 1984, 

respsictively. Paragraph 9(b) of the Agreement set out, in the 

even• of divorce or separation, the parties' rights and 

2 
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obligaltions, including, inter alit,  the husband's obligation to 

pay $350,000 par annum' to the wife as maintenance and $10,000,000 

in a 1 mp sum within 90 days after entry of a decree of divorce. 

ph 10 of the Agreement providers Paraq 

Without obtaining (the husband's] written 
consent in advance, (the wife) shall not 
directly or' indirectly publish, or cause to 
be published, any diary, memoir, letter, 
story, 'photograph interview, article, essay, 
account, or description or depiction of any 
kind whatsoever, whether fictionalized or 
not, concerning her marriage to (the' husband] 
or any other aspect of (the husband's] 
personal, business or financial affairs, or 
assist or provide information to others in 
connection with the publiCation or 
dissemination of any such material or 
excerpts thereof. *** Any violation of the 
terms of this Paragraph (10) shall constitute 
a material breach of this agreement. In the 
event such breach occurs, [the husband's] 
obligations pursuant to Paragraph (9) hereof, 
to make payments or provisions to or for the 
benefit of [the wife, shall thereupon 
terminate. In addition, in the event of any 
such. breach, [the wife) hereby consents to • 
the granting of a temporary or permanent 
injunction against her (or against any agent 
acting in her behalf) by any court Of 
competent jurisdiction prohibiting her (or 
her agent) from violating the terms of this 
Paragraph. 

Paragr ph 12 of the Agreement states: 

In the. event that an action for divorce is 
instituted at any time hereafter by either 
party against the other. in any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the parties hereto 
agree that they nevertheless shall be bound 
by all of the terms of this Agreement. To 

3 
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the extent possible and appropriate this 
Agreement shall be incorporated in the decree 
to be entered in such action and. shall not be. 
merged therein. If there be anything in such 
judgment or decree inconsistent with any of 
the terms or provisions of this Agreement, 
the terms and conditions, of this Agreement 
shall govern and shall survive such decree. 

n March, 1990, the wife commenced an action, alleging, 

I that, to the extent the Agreement provides that she 

has waived her. claims to marital property under Domestic 

Relations Law 5236, it is unconscionable and the product of 

overreaching and fraud and, thus, unenforceable and seeking a 

declaration to that effect. The wife subsequently instituted an 

action for divorce.. Both cases were assigned to the same IAB 

court, which, without resolving the issue as to the 

enforceability of the Agreement, on:December 12, 1990, granted. 

the wife a judgment of divorce on the ground of cruel and inhuman 

tree sent. 

hereafter, on March 22, 1991, the parties, after extensive 

negot ations, disposed of the declaratory judgment action by 

enter ng into a stipulation of settlement which, except for 

carta n modifications not relevant herein, expressly ratified all 

the p ovisions of the Agreement. The stipulation further 

provi ed, "[The wife's] acceptance.of.the check for $10,000,000 

tends ed herewith on the evening of March 22, 1991 shall 

can't tuts the parties' irrevocable acceptance of the-  terms of 
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this 1:ipulation and any documents executed in connecticn 

herewith." The wile withdrew her claims challenging the 

onfolteability of the Agreement and, on May 22, 1991, the IAA 

court signed a supplemental judgment incorporating by reference 

all the terms of the Agreement, as modified by the March 22, 1991 

stipu ation of settlement, except paragraph 10, which it, !'ii 

snort  and without explanation or notice to the parties, 

excluded. , 
1 

f
t is well settled that, in the slums of any affront to 

publi policy/  parties to a civil dispute have the right to chart 

their awn litigation course. (T.W. Oili  Inc. v. Consoli4Ated 

57 NY2d 574, 579-580.) "(Clourts 

have ong favored and encouraged the fashioning of stipulations 

as a sans of expediting and simplifying the resolution of 

dispu es." (Mitchell vs  New York Boon., 61 NY2d 208, 214.) In 

disposing of such litigation, parties "may stipUlate away 

statu 

 

ary l  and even constitutional rights." (Metier of New York.  

anna i Western R.R. Co., 98 N.Y. 447, 453; j, Matter et  Lagga 

 

 

  

 

  

AbramsvictLy. Board of Bch:a., 46 NT2d 450, 456, cert. den,, 444 

U.S. =45 [waiver of due process right to a hearing]; Matter of 

114 AD2d 677 [waiver of due process and 

equal protection rights].) Of course, given a showing of cause 

suffi ient to invalidate a contract, such as fraud, collusion, 

mist e or some such similar ground,. a court may relieve a party 

5 
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from the consequences of his or her stipulation. (100 Concourse 

;2212. v. Cruz, 133 AD2d 371, 372.) 

r

uite apart from the latter considerations, the wife 

conte ds that in declining to incorporate the confidentiality 

claus of the Agreement into the supplemental judgment of 

; divor a, the IAS court properly invoked the discretion 

speci ically afforded it by the parties in paragraph 12 of the 

Agre 	nt. She argues that since the-  court was bound to 

inco rate the terms of the Agreement w[t]o the extent possible 

and a propriate," it was vested with the discretion to refuse to 

int= orate those provisions it deemed inappropriate. To 

into ret the phrase "rt]on.the extent possible and appropriate" 

as co tarring upon the court the unfettered discretion to pick 

and c case the terms of the Agreement, as ratified by the 

stipu ation of settlement, it deemed appropriate for 

inco oration would result in a complete undoing of the 

settl nt and violate the principle that the parties are free to 

charttheir own litigation course. The only reasonable 

into rotation of the clause is that it authorizes the court, for 

soon reasons and after notice to the parties, to refuse to 

inco 	ate soma of the terms of the Agreement. Thus, contrary 

to t wife's arguments, paragraph 12 itself doss not afford the 

c 	any more authority to interfere with the parties' awn 

afire ent than the court would have under existing law. 

6 
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lover, and perhaps more important, is the manner in which 

the IAS,court refused to incorporate paragraph 10. Even assuming 

that th court had a sound basis for' refusing to enforce the 

confide tiality clause, as a matter of procedural due process, 

the par ias were entitled to notice and an opportunity to be 

heard b fore the court, seta mental  altered. the . tarms of their 

agree!. t. The use of the word "appropriate* in paragraph 12 can 

only be reasonably interpreted as contemplating that the decision 

not to noorporate a provision of the Agreement would be 

discuss d and that any attempt to limit the incorporation of any 

provisi n would be. made to the court on appropriate notice and 

with an opportunity to be heard. In the absence of any 

indicat on that the parties had such notice, it is apparent that 

the c 	acted without authority in excluding paragraph 10 from 

inoorpo ation•into the .supplementaljudgment. Moreover, in the 

absence of Some explanation of the court's refusal to incorporate 

paragra h 10, we are not in a position to review the merits of 

its act one. 

Th wife also advances a substantive argument justifying the 

court's refusal to incorporate paragraph 10 into the. supplemental 
judgmen 	She claims that, absent a compelling state interest, 

the fad ral and New York State constitutions bar a court from. 

issuing a. prior restraint barring an individual from ever 

public ng any statements about a specific subject. of course, • 

7 
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WO c only speculate that this was the rationale for the court's 

 

 

actions since, as noted, it gave no explanation as to its 

reas s. Furthermore, the constitutional prohibition against 
prior restraint applies only to orders issued by the government. 
In ar ing that a divorce judgment incorporating the terms. of a 
post- uptialagreement is the equivalent of a governmental order, 

the w fe takes a great leap in logic. We reject such a premise. 
or is there any evidence or indeed any claim that the • 

Agra nt vas the product of fraud, collusion, mistake, accident, 

or so such similar ground. While the supplemental judgment was 

enter d in the context of a lawsuit in which the wife had 
origi ally claimed fraud and duress, those claims had been 
wit awn and the court, by incorporating the Agreement into the 

judgm nt, placed its own stamp of approval on its terms, as well . 

as on the. wife's withdrawal of her fraud and duresi claims. 
n any event, even in the absence of the trial court's 

appro al, there is no basis for a fraud or duress claim with 
rasp .t to paragraph 10 of the Agreement. In commencing an 

actio 'challenging the validity of the Agreement, the wife sought 

A deo &ration that it is unenforceable only to the extent that it 
provi es that the wife has waived her claim to marital property 

or re tricted the rights of the children of the marriage. At no 

time -id she claim that paragraph 10 Will the result of fraud or 

dures . When, on March 22, 1991, the parties entered into a 
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mettl.ement of that action, they agreed to modify certain portions 

of t!ie Agreement and to ratify the unchanged portions. Thus, the 

wife twice agreed to abide by paragraph 10t in 1987 when she 

sign d the Agreement and in 1991 when -she entered into the 

stip lotion of settlement; she was represented by counsel on both 
; 

occa ions. 

Since it is clear that the trial court exceeded its "limited 

tut rity to disturb.the,terms of a separation agreement' 

( 	 30 NY2d 277, 283) and paragraph 10 does not, 

on i•s face, offend public policy as a prior restraint on 

prot cted speech (elk, Snenn v. United States, 444 U.S. 307), we 
modi y to incorporate the terms,  of said agreement into the 

supp emental judgment as agreed to by the parties. 

ordingly, the supplemental judgment of divorce of the 

Supr a Court, New York County (Phyllis Gangel-Jacob, J.), 

ente ed May 29, 1991, should be modified, on the law, to delete 

ther
l
from the exception of paragraph 10 of the December 24, 1987 

post .ptial agreement from incorporation therein and, except as 

R-,95% 
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thus mod lied, affirmed, without costs or disbursements. 

M 77 IMIMMI2..TEZED 

'Hot on by plaintiff-respondent to strike statements of 

alleged act in appellant's brief is denied. 

All concur. 

TIIS CONSTITUTES TEE DECISION AND ORDER 
OP EE SUPREME LOUR?, APPELLATE DIVISION, FIRST MIPARTKENT 

NNTSRSDs April 16/.1992 	• 

Ccolliajw.A.‘4, Olitk&e6"' CAP'41.4  
cierkpCPUTY CLERK 
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PROOF OF SERVICE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
ss. 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

I am employed in the County of Los Angeles, State of 

California. I am over the age of eighteen (18) years and not a 

party to the within action. My business address is 6255 Sunset 

Blvd., Suite 2000, Hollywood, California 90028. 

On November 24, 1992, I served the foregoing document 

described as PLAINTIFF CHURCH OF SCIENTOLOGY INTERNATIONAL'S 

REPLY TO DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S DEMURRER TO 

AMENDED ANSWER on interested parties in this action by 

[ ] by placing the true copies thereof in sealed envelopes as 
stated on the attached mailing list; 

[X] by placing [ ] the original [X] a true copy thereof in 
sealed envelopes addressed as follows: 

Ford Greene 	BY TELEFAX & U.S. MAIL 
HUB Law Offices 
711 Sir Francis Drake Boulevard 
San Anselmo, CA 9490-1949 

[X] BY MAIL 
[ ] *I deposited such envelope in the mail at Los Angeles, 

California. The envelope was mailed with postage 
thereon fully prepaid. 

[X] As follows: I am "readily familiar" with the firm's 
practice of collection and processing correspondece 
for mailing. Under that practice it would be 
deposited with U.S. postal service on that same day 
with postage thereon fully prepaid at Los Angeles, 
California in the ordinary course of business. I am 
aware that on motion of party served, service is 
presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or 
postage meter date is more than one day after date of 
deposit for mailing in affidavit. 

Executed on November 24, 1992, at Los Angeles, California. 



[ ] **(BY PERSONAL SERVICE) I delivered such envelope by 
hand to the offices of the addressee. 

Executed on 	 , 1992, at Los Angeles, California. 

[X] (State) I declare under penalty of the laws of the State 
of California that the above is true and correct. 

[ ] (Federal) I declare that I am employed in the office of 
a member of the bar of this court at whose direction the 
service was made. 

Type or Print Name 	 Signature 

* (By Mail, signature must be of person depositing envelope 
in mail slot, box or bag) 

** (For personal service signature must be that of messenger) 



PROOF OF SERVICE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
ss. 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

I am employed in the County of Los Angeles, State of 

California. I am over the age of eighteen (18) years and not a 

party to the within action. My business address is 6255 Sunset 

Blvd., Suite 2000, Hollywood, California 90028. 

On November 24, 1992, I served the foregoing document 

described as PLAINTIFF CHURCH OF SCIENTOLOGY INTERNATIONAL'S 

REPLY TO DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S DEMURRER TO 

AMENDED ANSWER on interested parties in this action by 

[ ] by placing the true copies thereof in sealed envelopes as 
stated on the attached mailing list; 

[X] by placing [ ] the original [X] a true copy thereof in 

sealed envelopes addressed as follows: 

Paul Morantz 	BY HAND 
P.O. Box 511 
Pacific Palisades, CA 	90272 

[ ] BY MAIL 
[ ] *I deposited such envelope in the mail at Los Angeles, 

California. The envelope was mailed with postage 

thereon fully prepaid. 
[ ] As follows: I am "readily familiar" with the firm's 

practice of collection and processing correspondece 
for mailing. Under that practice it would be 
deposited with U.S. postal service on that same day 
with postage thereon fully prepaid at Los Angeles, 

California in the ordinary course of business. I am 

aware that on motion of party served, service is 
presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or 
postage meter date is more than one day after date of 

deposit for mailing in affidavit. 

Executed on 	 , 1992, at Los Angeles, California. 

[X] **(BY PERSONAL SERVICE) I delivered such envelope by 
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hand to the offices of the addressee. 

Executed on November 24, 1992, at Los Angeles, California. 

[X] (State) I declare under penalty of the laws of the State 
of California that the above is true and correct. 

(Federal) I declare that I am employed in the office of 
a member of the bar of this court at whose direction the 
service was made. 

Type or Print Name 	 Signature 

* (By Mail, signature must be of person depositing envelope 
in mail slot, box or bag) 

** (For personal service signature must be that of messenger) 


